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In the name of Allah, The Merciful, The Compassionate

Shari’a Supervisory Board’s Report
For the Financial Year Ended on 31.12.2025

Thanks to Allah, the Almighty, Prayers and Peace be Upon the True Messenger, His
Relatives and All His Companions.

To the Shareholders and Participants of Takaful International.
Assalam Alaikum Wa Rahmat Allah Wa Barakatuh.

In compliance with our appointment to undertake the duties of Shari’a supervision, we hereby
submit the following report.

The Shari’a Supervisory Board reviewed the procedures relating to the Takaful transactions
and the applications introduced by the Company for the year ended on 31.12.2025. The
Board has reviewed and confirmed the implementation of the principles and guidelines
governing the relationship between the participants and shareholders in order to identify the
rights of each side. Discussions took place with the Company’s officers with regard to its
items and the attached Notes. The Board gave its Shari’a directives for Takaful transactions
and answered the queries made by the management.

It is exclusively the management’s responsibility to ensure that the Company conducts its
business in accordance with the Islamic Sharia’a. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the Company’s operations and that the financial statements are prepared on the basis of
and in compliance with the Islamic Sharia’a.

In our opinion:

I. The computation of surplus deficit, charging of losses and expenses to the participants
and shareholders fully confirm with the principles established by ourselves in
compliance with Sharia’a rules and principles.

2. The Company has taken all the required measures to exclude any prohibited gains and
divert them to authorized charities.

3. The calculations of Zakah is in compliance with Islamic Sharia’a rules and principles
and as directed by the Sharia’2a supervisory Board. It should be noted that
responsibility for discharging of Zakah lies with the shareholders not the Company.

We pray to Allah the Almighty to grant the Company continuous success for purifying
business transactions from suspicions and prohibitions.

Assalam Alaikum Wa Rahmat Allah Wa Barakatuh
Sha'ban 15, 1447 corresponding to 3" February 2026.
Member of the Shari’a Supervisory Board: =——___
i
Dr. Shaikh Abdul Latif Mahmood Al Mahmood  Chairman .

Shaikh Esam Mohamed Ishag Deputy Chairman ' / -

Dr. Shaikh Osama Mohamed Bahar Member @

Ercortsed By the {onieal Ravk of Buanvim a5 3 Gereral and Famiy Tabaful Company e pe Joti aSpaicd £330 12l 21010, a0 802330 05 puss
19V V01 0107 waild | pyaul asiboo dolall Err . il gg 3 | EFA ol duotes | FAI gogks’ W s | sl Cudalt

Fedd OF0e | Bl 6807 Aol M1 15t Delrgt 25 BOBM 3230 Meam Fagdor of Barea o IEL T 176 Tes

T £ Gt 85000 BYS0 | iy gLy 1l Bh



Takaful International Company B.S.C. G I G &
Board of Directors Report for the year 2025

Dear Shareholders,

On bhehalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the 36th Annual Report of Takaful International Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2025.

Economic and Market Context

The year 2025 unfolded against a backdrop of geopoiitical uncertainty in the Middle East, moderating inflation trends, and
the lingering effects of higher global interest rates. While advanced economies showed gradual recovery, growth across
emerging markets remained uneven. Despite these global headwinds, the GCC economies demonstrated resilience,
supported by energy sector stability, infrastructure investment, and progressive fiscal and regulatory reforms.

The Kingdom of Bahrain continued to deliver steady non-oil sector growth, supported by financial services expansion,
manufacturing activity, and targeted public and private investment initiatives. Inflation remained contained, liquidity
conditions improved, and business sentiment strengthened, reflecting political stability and continued reform momentum.
These developments reinforce Bahrain’s position as a well-regulated and competitive regional financial hub.

Insurance ond Takaful Industry Developments

The takaful and insurance sector continued to evolve in response to rising customer expectations, regulatory enhancements,
and accelerated digitalization. Key industry trends included the growing adoption of digital distribution channels,
bancatakaful partnerships, increased emphasis on underwriting discipline, and strengthened governance and conduct

standards.

Market competition remained intense, underscoring the importance of prudent risk management, operational efficiency,
and sustained investment in service excellence.

Financial Performance
Against this backdrop, the Company delivered a strong financial performance in 2025.
Key Highlights
o Profit before tax: BD 1.819M (FY2024: BD 1.650M)
» Recognised takaful contributions: +14% year-on-year
* Recognised takaful costs: +9%, aligned with business growth

These results demonstrate the resilience of our business model, the effectiveness of our underwriting strategy, and the
continued impact of disciplined expense management.
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Policyholder — Surplus Distribution

During the financial year 2025, the Company distributed surplus from the Policyholders’ Takaful Fund for the underwriting
year 2024 for Motor and Property lines of business, in accordance with the approved surplus distribution mechanism and
after meeting all claims, technical reserves, and regulatory requirements. This represents a significant milestone for the
takaful sector, as Takaful International Company became the first takaful operator in the Kingdom of Bahrain to distribute
surplus to participants. The surplus distribution reflects the strength of the Company’s underwriting performance,
disciplined expense management, and effective governance of the Policyholders’ Fund, and is fully aligned with the
principles of Sharia and applicable regulatory guidelines.

The Board considers surplus distribution to be an important indicator of the sustainability and maturity of the takaful
business modet and will continue to assess future distributions in line with fund performance, regulatory requirements,
and Sharia guidance.

Strategic Priorities
The Board remains focused on strengthening the Company’s long-term competitiveness and sustainable growth.

Our strategic priorities include:

» Accelerating digital transformation and omnichannel customer journeys
» Expanding bancatakaful and strategic distribution partnerships

e Introducing modular, Sharia-compliant product offerings

¢ Enhancing underwriting discipline through advanced analytics

« Strengthening Sharia governance and transparency

» Integrating ESG considerations into product design and investments

» Driving operational efficiency through automation and cloud migration

These initiatives aim to balance growth with prudent risk management while enhancing customer trust and experience.

investment and Growth Strategy
The Company continues to follow a prudent, Sharia-compliant investment strategy aligned with its liability profile and

regulatory expectations.

Key elements include:

« Core allocation to sovereign and high-grade GCC sukuk

¢ Maintenance of strong liquidity buffers

o Selective exposure to Sharia-compliant equity funds

« Evaluation of ESG-aligned and infrastructure-linked sukuk
» Disciplined re-takaful arrangements

This balanced approach supports capital preservation, sustainable returns, and long-term growth.

Human Capital and Organizational Strength
Cur people remain the cornerstone of our success. We continue to invest in leadership development, digital and data-

analytics capability building, and Sharia awareness across business functions.
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Key initiatives include succession planning, performance-linked incentives aligned with long-term sustainability, employee
wellbeing programmes, and inclusive hiring practices. These efforts foster a high-performance culture anchored in integrity,

innovation, and customer centricity.

Risk Management and Governance

The Board maintains a conservative risk appetite aligned with regulatory standards and the Company’s A- credit rating.

Our governance priorities include:

+ Capital adequacy monitoring and stress testing

* Operational resilience and cyber-security enhancement
= Regulatory compliance and conduct risk oversight

» Strengthened enterprise risk management frameworks
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s

The Board of directors' remuneration and the executive management expenses for the year are as follows:

First: Board of directors’ remuneration details:

Fixed Remunerations Variable Remunerations - w
5 Tz o
3 g Z c
g £ 3
: o T o
= A S o =
2 = i <
g 3 A & g
? = £
= o Lo
SOt |- o
First: Independent DIr i
1- Mr. Ebrahim Mohamed
Sharif Alrayis - 600 - - 600 11,000 - - - 11,000 - 11,600 -
Chairman
parashecARAtovIsEs - | 280 | - | -] 180 | 13000 | - | -| - | 11,000 | 11,000 23,80 | -
Director
3- Dr. Osama Tagi
Albaharna - 2,400 - - 2,400 | 11,000 - - - 11,000 - 13,400 -
Director
4- Mz, Yahya Nooruddin
Director 1800 - _ ,00 - - - | 11,000 .000 15,800 -

| Second: Non-Efeo
1-Abduirahman  Abdulla
Mohamed

Vice Chairman

Third: Exetutive Directors:

1-. Khalid Saud Al Hasan B 11,000 11,000 | 11,000 | 22,900 -
Director
2- Dr. Abdulla Saleh Sultan ~ 1,800 _ _ 1,800 11'000 . - - 11'000 - 12'800 o
Director
3- Osama Kamel Kishk - | 2400 | - | - | 2400 | 13000 |- |- |- [ 11000 |11,000| 24,400 | -
Director
4‘: Mr. Ahmed Bucheeri ) 2,400 } - | 2,400 | 11,000 | - . R 11,000 - 13,400 -
Director
5-.Ms. Fatema Al Saffar _ 2,400 ) - | 2,800 | 11,000 | - . - | 11,000 - 13,400 -
Director
Tota! - 17,700 - - | 17,700 | 110,000 | - - - | 110,000 | 47,000 | 174,700} -
Notes:

- All amounts are stated in Bahraini Dinars.

- The Remuneration of the chairman and BOD is subject to the General Assembly’s approval and the relevant regulatory
authorities’ approval, as appropriate.

Other remunerations:

* 1t includes in-kind benefits — specific amount - remuneration for technical, administrative and advisory works (if any).

** Jt includes the board member's share of the profits - Granted shares ({insert the value) {if any).
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Second: Executive management remuneration details:

Total paid Any other cash/ in

Total paid salaries . ; . Aggregate
remuneration  kind remuneration
and allowances Amount
{Bonus) for 2025

425,883 174,281 12,230 612,394

Executive management

Top 6 remunerations for executives, including
CEQ* and Senior Financial Officer*®*

Note: All amounts are stated in Bahraini Dinars.

* The highest authority in the executive management of the company, the name may vary: (CEO, President, General Manager (GM),
Managing Director...etc).
** The company's highest financial officer {CFO, Finance Director, ...etc)

Dividend Recommendation

Based on the Company’s performance and financial position, the Board recommends a cash dividend of 15% of the paid-
up capital (15 Fils per share), subject to regulatory approval and shareholder endorsement at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

Acknowledgements

The Board extends its sincere appreciation to His Majesty King Hamad Bin Isa Al Khalifa and the Government of the
Kingdom of Bahrain for their continued support to the national economy and financial sector. We also thank the Central
Bank of Bahrain for its guidance and regulatory stewardship.

We are grateful to our shareholders for their trust, our customers for their confidence, our re-takaful partners and
intermediaries for their collaboration, and our Sharia’a Supervisory Board for its guidance. Above all, we acknowledge the
dedication and professionalism of our employees, whose commitment underpins our achievements.

Outlook

Looking ahead, the Board remains cautiously optimistic. With gradual improvement in global investment conditions,
sustained regional economic momentum, and continued domestic reform progress, the Company is well positioned to
deliver sustainable returns.

By focusing on disciplined underwriting, digital innovation, prudent investment management, and strong Sharia
governance, we remain committed to creating long-term value for all stakeholders.

Thank You,

Yo .

N T, S
Ebrahim Al Rayes— Abdulrahman Abdulia Mohamed

Chairman Vice Chairman

16 February 2026
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Takaful
International Company B.S.C.

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Qur opinion

In our opinien, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Takaful International Company B.S.C. (the "Company”) as at 31 December 2025, its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards
("FAS") issued by the Accounting and Auditing QOrganisation for Islamic Financial Institutions ("AAQIFI").

What we have audited
The Company's financial statements comprise:

. the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2025;

. the statement of income for the year then ended;

the siatement of other comprehensive income for the year then ended,

the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the year then ended,

the statement of changes in participants’ fund for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the notes to the financial staterments, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

= @ & om

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards for Islamic Financial Institutions issued by
AAOIFI. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with AAOIFI's Code of Ethics for Accountants and Auditors
of Islamic Financial Institutions (“AACIF| Code”) as applicable to audits of financials statements of public interest
entities and the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Kingdom of
Bahrain. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
AAOQIFI Code.

PrcewaterhouseCoopers M.E Limited

www.pwe.com Office no. 4701, Bulding no. 1459, Road no. 4626, Block no. 346
P.O Box 60771, Manama/Sea Front, Kingdom of Bahrain
T: +973 17 118800, F: 4973 17 540556, CR no. 47378
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Takaful
International Company B.S.C. (continued)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Our audit approach

Overview

Key audit matter Valuation of liability for claims incurred but not reported

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in
the financial statements. In parlicular, we considered where the Board of Directors made subjective
judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions
and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk
of management override of internal controls, including among other matters consideration of whether there
was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an opinion on
the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Company, the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in which the Company operates.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters,

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Valuation of liability for claims incurred but not | We performed the following audit procedures:
reported

- Understood and evaluated management's
As at 31 December 2025, as disclosed in notes 10 claims handling process and tested key
and 11, the liability for incurred claims included the controls.
estimates of present value of future cash flows of
BD 13,852 thousand (2024: BD 14,259 thousand). |- Obtained the IBNR vaijuation prepared by

management's external actuarial experts

The estimates of the present value of future cash together with the underlying key judgments and
flows include the best estimate of the ultimate cost assumptions.
of all claims incurred but not settled at the reporting
date, whether reported or not, together with the
refated claims handling costs. The estimate forthe |-  Evaluated the competence, capabilities and
claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is a key objectivity of management's external actuarial
judgment area as it requires the use of complex experts based on their qualifications and
actuarial methods to estimate uncertain and future experience and assessed their independence.
contractual cashflows. It requires management to
apply significant judgment in selecting actuarial
methods and assumptions. These estimates are

10
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Takaful
International Company B.S.C. (continued)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)

sensilive to changes in assumptions and rely in part | - Performed substantive tests, on a sample

on historical experience thal may not be fully basis, on the amounts recorded for claims

representative of future claim development. notified and paid; including comparing the
claims' amounts to appropriate source

Given the high degree of estimation uncertainty, the documentation.

use of complex actuarial models, and the level of

judgment involved, we have considered the IBNR - Tested the completeness and accuracy of the

component of the estimates of the present value of underlying claims data used as inputs into the

future cash flows to be a key audit matter. actuarial models by reconciling to the

accounting records.
- Involved cur actuarial specialists to:

+ evaluate the methodology used by
management's external actuarial experis in
the valuation of the IBNR against the
requirements of FAS 43 as well as
alignment with industry practice;

+ assess the appropriateness of key actuarial
assumplions used including expected
ultimate losses, year-on-year movements,
claims development paiterns, claims ratios,
and discount rates;

¢ independently calculate the IBNR, on a
sample basis, using sensitivity testing on
the key areas of judgement 1o develop a
reasonable range, taking into account the
time value of money, and compare the
results with the amounts recorded by
management; and

+ assess the adequacy and appropriateness
of the related disclosures in the financial
statements.

- Performed overall conclusion analytics on the
liabilities for incurred claims.

"
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Independent auditor's report fo the shareholders of Takaful
International Company B.S.C. (continued)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Other information

The Beard of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Shari'a
Supervisory Board Report and the Board of Directors Report (but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report and the Annual Report
which is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of those charged with governance for the financial statements

These financial statements and the Company's undertaking to operate in accordance with Islamic Sharia’ Rules
and Principles are the responsibility of the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the FAS and the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law number (21) of 2001, as amended (the
*Commercial Companies Law"), the Central Bank of Bahrain ("CBB") Rulebook (Volume 3) and for such internal
control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, i.e.. the Board of Directors, are responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

12
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Takaful
International Company B.S.C. (continued)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Auditing Standards for Islamic Financial Institutions issued by AAQIFI will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards for Islamic Financial Institutions issued by AAQIFI,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report o the related disclosures in the financial statemenis or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

13
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Takaful
International Company B.S.C. (continued)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory and Sharia' requirements

As required by the Commercial Companies Law and the CBB Rulebook (Veolume 3), we report the following:

I, The Company has maintained proper accounting records and the financial statements are in
agreement therewith;

. The financial information contained in the Shari'a Supervisory Board Report and the Board of
Directors Report is consistent with the financial statements;

Ml Nothing has come fo our attention which causes us to believe that the Company has, during the
year, breached any of the applicable provisions of the Commercial Companies Law, the CBB
Rulebook (Volume 3 and applicable provisions of Volume &), the Central Bank of Bahrain and
Financial Institutions Law, and CBB directives or the items of its Memorandum and Articles of
Association that would have a material adverse effect on its activities for the year ended 31
December 2025 or its financial position as at that date; and

V. Satisfactory explanations and information have been provided to us by the Board of Directors in
response to all our requests.

Further, we report that the Company has complied with the Islamic Sharia’ Principles and Rules as
determined by the Sharia’ Supervisory Board of the Company during the year under audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is John Molloy.

Partner’s registration number: 255
PricewaterhouseCoopers M.E Limited
Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain

16 February 2026

14



Takaful International Company B.S.C.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As At 31 December 2025 (Audited)

Note 31 Dacember 31 December
2025 2024
8o 8D
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 6 2,315,865 1.886,524
Term deposits 7 3,199,689 4,699,880
Financial assets at fair value 8 31,053,926 28,713,416
Retakaful arrangement assets 10811 1,657,280 1,959,339
Other receivables, accrued income and prepayments 12 7,034,281 5,028,946
Property and equipment 13 144,831 158,153
Intangible assets 14 605,250 625,601
Right of use asset 15.1 305,783 388,484
Investment In an associate 9 249,953 247,262
Statutory deposits 5 125,000 125,000
TOTAL ASSETS 46,591,938 43,832,605
LIABILITIES, PARTICIPANTS'
FUNDS AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities
Takaful arrangement liabilities 10411 28,118,305 24 B77.TAT
Retakaful arrangement liabilities 10&11 471,341 798,803
Payables and accrued liabilities 16 5,237,370 4,183,875
ljara liabilities 15.2 366,911 427,002
Tax liabilities 44 43,988 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 32,237,915 30,088,427
Participants' funds
Surplus in participants’ funds 1,022,417 1,372,197
Investments fair value reserve 221,235 {107,580}
TOTAL PARTICIPANTS' FUNDS 1,253,652 1,064 617
Shareholders' equity
Share ¢apital 17 8,500,000 8,500,000
Treasury shares 17 {20,661) (2.087)
Statutory reserve 17 1,332,863 1,191,041
General reserve 17 200,000 200,000
Retained earnings 310,418 2,896,315
Investments fair value reserve {22,249) (105.708)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 13,100,371 12,679,561
TOTAL LIABILITES, PARTICIPANTS’ FUNDS
AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 46,591,938 43,832,605

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 16 February 2026 and
signed on their behalf by
—

AN p Aﬁ,ﬂx/fﬁ\mqﬁ{/

“Ebrahim Mohamed Shaif Alrayps AbdulRahman Abdulla Mdhammed
Chairman | §: Vice Chairman

The notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financialislatements.




Takaful International Company B.5.C.

STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audited)

Note Sharsholders’ Particlpants' Total

Yoar ended Year ended Your ended

31 Docembor 31 December 31 December

2025 2024 2025 2024 2028 2024
Recognised takaful contributions 18 - B 29,722,544 25,680,728 29,722,544 25,980,728
Recognised takaful cosis 19 - - {24,730,085) {22,623,503) (24,7)0,085) {22,623,503)
Retakaful net results - - {5,087,136) (2,333,588) {5,087,138) (3,333,586)
Takaful participants’ groas margin - - {84,857) 23,6839 {94,857) 23839
Parlicipanis’ profit mcome on investment 20 - - 1,158,734 1,057,805 1,166,734 1,057 805
Participants’ other investmen lass 20 . - {10,721) (8.165) {10,721) (8.165)
ECL loas on financial assets 0 . - (4,409} (520} {4,409) (520)
Mudarib share expense 20 = E (286,401) {262,280) (286,401) {262,280)
Amartization of deferred cost (related to

provision of takaful arrangements) 10&11 - . (525,000) {619,286) {823,088) {615.286)
Amortization of defemed profit related to
grovision of retakaful arrangements) 10811 . - 14,761 96,198 14,75 95,196

Ciher participants’ expensas S - {50,086) 26 944 [50,085) 26,944
Net participant’s surplus - - 201,124 315,333 201,124 315333
Wakala fee incoma 22 6,133,087 5,232,020 - - 8,133,067 5,232,820
Sharehotders profit income on kvestment 20 426,906 537,588 - - 426,908 537,588
Shareholders other Investiment incorns | [axpensa) 20 165,836 {148,128) - - 165,933 {148,128)
ECL loss on financial assels 20 (65) {8.953) - - (3%5) (8.953)
Mudarib share income 20 205,401 262,260 - - 205401 262,280
Share of resull of an associate 9 368,016 38,253 . - 38,018 38,253
Other income 23 34,085 11,114 - - 34,088 11,114
Total sharehclders' income 7,081,346 5,924,874 - - 7,001,348 5,924,974
General and administrative expenses 24 {2,066,849) (2,565,928) - - {2,066,249) (2.585,928)
Commission expenses 25 {1.746,130) (1,644,105} - - 1,746,130} (1,644,105)
Other expenses 26 (338,675) {380,510} - - {338,875} (380,510)
Third party adminlistration expsnsaes 22 {611,647} S (511,847} -
Total sharehciders' sxpense {5,463,301) (4,590,543) - - {5.483,301) (4,590.543)
Profit before tax for the year 1,618,045 1,334,431 204,124 315,333 1,819,189 1,849,764
Tax expense 44 (199,823) - - - (199,823 -
Net profit after tax for the year 1,418,222 1,334,431 201,124 315,333 1,619,346 1,849,764
Ezrnings per share {fils) ] 18.71 1570

-

/

rectors of the',ompany on 18 February 2026 and signed on their behalf by :
AbdulRehman Abdulla Mohamimed

ﬁ Vice Chairman

These financial statements were approved by tha Board of

Essam
™ Chief Buecutive

The notes 4 to 45 form an inlegral part of thesa financial statements.
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PARTICIPANTS' FUND

For the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audited)

Balance as at 1 January 2025

Other comprehensive income

Surplus / {deficit) for the year

Surplus distribution to policyholder (Note 43)

Balance as at 31 December 2025

Balance at 1 January 2024
Other comprehensive loss
Surplus for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2024

Surplus in participants’

Investments fair value

fund reserve

General Family General Family
{akaful takaful takaful takaful Total
BD BD BD BD BD
935,288 236,909 {84,214) (23,366) 1,064,617
- - 307,816 30,999 338,815
283,314 (82,190) - - 201,124
{350,904) - - - {350,904)
867,698 154,719 223,602 7,633 1,253,652
676,063 180,801 (46,287) {9,230) 801,347
- - (37.927) (14.136) (52,083)
259,225 56,108 S - 315,333
935,288 236,909 (84,214) (23,366) 1,064,617

The notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

19



Takaful International Company B.S.C.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 {Audited)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net shareholders' profit for the year

Surplus from participants’ operations

Adjustments for

Tax expense

Depreciation & amortisation

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Investment income on financial assets at amortised cost
Investment income on financial assets at fair value
ECL movement on financial assets

Share of result of an associate

Net takaful & retakaful finance costs

ljara cost

QOperating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Retakaful arrangement assets

Other receivables, accrued income and prepayments
Takaful arrangement liabilities

Retakaful arrangment liabilities

Payahles and accrued liabilities

Tax paid
Surplus distribution paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividends received

Profit income received

Other Investment income & expenses received/paid
Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of Intangible assels

Placement in term deposits

Redemption of term deposits

Additions to investments carried at fair value
Dividend from associate

Disposals of financial assets at fair value

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid

ljara kabilities paid

Purchase of Treasury shares

Net cash used in financing activities

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR
Non-cash transactions

Additions to right of use asset
Additions to ijara liabilites

The notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For the year ended
31 December
2025 2024
8b BD
1,418,222 1,334,431
201,124 315,333
199,823 -
148,527 138,625
109,039 77.251
- (17.064)
(2,221,861) (1,756,311)
4,464 9,473
{36,016) (38,253)
510,337 524,090
33,898 37.941
367,586 625,516

416,810 1,082,883
(2,039,313) {153,557}
915,470 (375,958}
(328,462) 537.487
993,179 681,550
325,241 2,397,921
(155,835) -
{90,764) -
78,642 2,397,921
275,166 160,556
1,438,984 1,430,395
{152,447) {129,103)
(64,030) (112,679)
{50,824) (124,718)
{3.699,710) (7.025,002)
5,199,901 8,230,083
(2,088,034) (8.675,771)
33,3258 26,660
659,567 2,993,653
1,551,898 (3,225,926)
{1,062,297) (637,378)
{120,328) (75.624)

{18,574) -
{1,201,199) (713,002)
429,342 (1,541,007)
1,886,524 3427531
2,315,865 1,886,524

(26,338} -

26,338 -



Takaful International Company B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2025

1 BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Takaful Intemational Company B.5.C. (*the Company’}, is a Bahrair public shareholding company registered
with the Ministry of Industry and Commerce in the Kingdom of Bahrain and operates under commercial
registration number 21100 abtained on 11 April 1989

The activities of lhe Company are organised on the principles of Shar’a. The principal aclivity of the Company
is to manage the General and Family takatul activities and investments by adopting wakala and mudarabha
models respectively. on behalf of the participants in accordance with the Islamic Shari'a principles. The
retakaful activities are organised on an underwriting year basis with the participants pooling their contributions
to compensale for losses suffered in the pool on occurrence of a defined avent.

The majority sharecholder of the Company Is Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company B.S.C., a listed entity
registered and incorporated in the Kingdom of Bahrain. The ullimate holding company is Fairtax Financial
Holding Limited, a listed entity registered and incorporated in Canada.

The Company is licensed by the Central Bank of Bahrain (the “CBB") to carry out the following principal
activilies'

- Developing and providing protection covers for property. engineering, general accident, liability, marine
cargo. manne hull, aviation, medical. group life, motor, level term assurance and decreasing term
assurance, and

- Management of general takaful and family takaful funds in accordance with the lslamic Shari‘a
principles on behalf of the participants of the fund,

The Company's general takaful fund comprise of all proteclion covers except decreasing term assurance,
level term assurance and savings takaful which are part of the family takaful fund.

The registered office of the Company is in the Kingdom of Bahrain. The full addrass is stated on page 2.

The financial statements of the Company were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
Board of Directors dated 16 February 2026,

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards ("FAS")
issued by the Accounting and Awditing Qrganization for Islamic Financial Institutions (FAAQIFIY), the Central
8ank of Bahran and Financial Institubions Law 2006, the applicable regulations set out in Volume 3 -
Insurance, Volume 6 - capital markets of the Central Bank of Bahrain's rule beok and the relevant provisions
of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law and its subsequent amendments. For the matters which are not
covered by AAQIFI standards, IFRS accounting Standards {*IFRS") have been applied.

Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to include the
measurement at equity and debt-type instruments at fair vafue through income and equity.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FAS requires the use of certan critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies.

Functional currency
The financial statements have been presented in Bahraini Dinars (BD) which is the functional currency of the
Comparny.
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.
NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
New standards, interpretations and amendmeants adopted by the Company

New standards, amendments and interpretations effective from 1 January 2025
FAS 42 - Presentation and disclosures in the Financial Statements of Takaful Institutions

AAOIFL has issued FAS 42 in 2022, This slandard supersedes the earlier FAS 12 — General Presentation and
Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Islamic Insurance Companies™. The objective of this siandard is to
set out the overall requirements for the presentation of financial statements, the minimum requirement for the
contents of and disclosures in the financial statements and recommended structure of financial statements
that facilitates fair presentation in line with Shari'a principles and rules for Takaful institutions, This standard
shall be effective for the financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025 with eary adoption permitted if
adopted alongside FAS 43 - Accounting for Takaful: Recognition and Measurement, provided that FAS 1
{Revised 2021) has already been adopted or is simultaneously adopted. The adoption of this standard did not
have significant impact on the Company’s presentation and disclosures in financial statements.

FAS 43 = Accounting for Takaful: Recognition and Measurement

AADIF] has issued FAS 43 in 2022. The objective of this standard is io set out the principles for the
recognition and measurement of Takaiul arrangements and ancillary transactions with the objective of
faithfully representing the information related to these arangements to the relevant stakeholders. The
standard should be read in conjunction with FAS 42 - Presentation and disclosures in the Financial
Statements of Takaful Institutions. This standard shall be effective for the financial periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2025 with early adoption permitted if adopled alongside FAS 42 —~ Presentation and
disclosures in the Financial Statements of Takaful Institutions.

The above standards were applied by the Company since 1 January 2023 (wilh retroactive application),
hence, these standards did not have any additional impact on the Company at 1 January 2025,

Naw standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective

The Company has not yet applied the following new and revised FASs that have been issued but are not yet
effective. These standards are currently in process of being assessed by the Company's management to
consider any implications in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future fransactions

FAS 45 - Quasi-Equity (Including Investment Accounts)

AAOQIFI has issued FAS 45 in 2023, This standard prescribes the principles of financial reporting related to
the parlicipatory invesiment instruments (including investment accounts) in which an Islamic financial
institution controls the underlying assets {mostly, as a working partner), on behalf of the stakeholders
other than the owners' equily. Such instruments (including, in particular, the unrestricted investment
accounis) normally qualify for on-balance-sheet accounling and are reported as guasi-equity. This standard
also provides the overall criteria for on-balance-sheet accounting for participatory investiment instruments
and quasi-equity, as well as, pooling, recognition, derecognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure for quasi-equity, I further addresses financial reporting related to other quasi-equity instrum
ents and cerlain specific issues. This standard shall be effective for the financial reporting years beginning on
or after 1 January 2026,

The concept of quasi-equity has been introduced in FAS 1 "General Presentation and Disclosures in
the Financial Siatements {Revised 2021)" . The Company shall address lhe requiremenis of FAS 45
“Quasi-Equity (Including Investment Accounts)’ on the effective date of the standard.
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
New standards, amendments and interpretations effective from 1 January 2025 {continued)

FAS 46 - Off-Balance shaet Assets Under Management

L SERERIEE I L IR mecen e e oo e e n B i oo st s b
sheet assets under management, and the related principles of financial reporting in line with the "AAQIFI
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting”. The standard encompasses the aspects of recognition,
derecognition, measurement, selection and adoption of accounting policies. related to off-balance-sheet
assels under management, as well as cerlain specific aspects of financial reporting such as impairment and
onerous commilments by the institution. The standard also includes the presentation and disclosure
requirements pardiculardy aligning the same with the requirements of the revised FAS 1 "General
Presentalicn and Disclosures in the Financial Statements” in respect ofthe statement of changes in off-
balance sheet assels under management. This standard. along with, FAS 45 "Quasi-Equily {Including
Investment Accounts}”, supersedes the earlier FAS 27 “Investment Accounts”, This standard shall be effective
for the financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2026 and shall be adopted at the same time of adoption
of FAS 45 - Quasi-Equity (Including Investment Accounts).

FAS 47 - Transfer of Assets Between Investment Pools

AAQIFI has issued FAS 47 in 2023. This standard prescribes the financial reporting principles and disclosure
requirements applicable to all ransfers between investment pools related to (and where material, between
significant categories of) owners' equity, quasi-equity and off-balance sheet assets under management of an
institution. It requires adoplion and consistent application of accounting policies for such transfers in ling with
Shan‘ah principles and rufes and describes general disclosure requirements in this respect. This standard
shall be effective for the financial years beginning or after 1 January 2026 and supersedes the earlier FAS 21
"Disclosure on Transfer of Assets". :

FAS 48 — Promotional Gifts and Prizes

AADIFI has issued FAS 48 on 9 December 2024. This standard prescribes the accounting and financial
reporling requirements applicable to promolional gifts and prizes awarded by the Islamic financial institutions
o their customers, including quasi-equity and other investment accountholders. This standard shall be
effective for the financial periods beginning or after 1 January 2026.

FAS 49 - Financial Reporting for Institutions Operating in Hyperinflationary Economies

AAQIFI has issued FAS 49 on 19 Decermber 2024. This standard oullines the principles governing financial
reporting for the institutions applying AAQIFI FASs operating in hyperinfiationary economies, duly considering
the relevant Shari'a principles and rules and heir unique business models. This standard shall be effective for
the financial periods beginning or after 1 January 2026 with early adoption encouraged.

FAS 50 - Financial Reporting for Islamic Investment Institutions (Including Investment Funds)

AAQIFI has issued FAS 50 on 24 December 2024. This standard supersedes the earlier FAS 14 “lnvestment
Funds.” This standard sets out the principles of financial reporting for Islamic Investment Institutions {"ills")
particularly prescribing overall requirements for the presentation, minimum contents and recommended
structure of their financial statements in a manner that facilitates truthful and fair presentalion in line wilh
Shari'a principles and rules, This standard shall be effective on the annual financial statements of an I} or

FAS 51 - Particlpatory Ventures

AAQIFI has issued FAS 51 on 10 November 2025, This standard prescribes accounting and financial
reporting principles for recognilion, measurement, presentation and disclosures to apply in relalion to
participatory ventures (including most of the common structures ! products based on Mudaraba and
Musharaka). This standard shall be applied in respect of accounting and financial reporting by the investors,
the working partners, as well as, the participatory ventures with regard to all such participatory ventures that
fali within the scope of this standard, including those with fixed and vanable equity / quasi-equity shares. This
standard shall be effective for the financial periods beginning or after 1 January 2027.

FAS 52 - Deferred Dellvery Sales: Salam and Istisna

AAOQIF) has issued FAS 52 on 31 December 2025. This standard prescribes the accounting and financial
reporting principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures related to deferred delivery
sales transactions, applicable to the respective buyers and sellers. Such transaclions include both, Salam-
and Istisna-based deferred delivery sales transactions, but do not include Islisna-based development
conlracts which are subject of another slandard being simultaneously issued. This standard shall be effective
for the financial periods beginning or afier 1 January 2027.
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting for Takaful: Recognition and Measurement

This standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement and reporting of Takaful arfangements
and ancillary transactions for the Takaful institutions. It aims 1o ensure that the Takaful institutions faithfully
present the information related to these amrangements to the relevant stakeholders as per the contractual
relationship between the parties and the business model of the Takaful business in line with the Shari'ah
principles and nies, The requirements of this standard are duly aligned with the international best practices of
financial reporting for the takaful business.

The Company has early adopted FAS 43 "Accounting for Takaful: Recognition and Measurement’ with a dale
of initial application of 1 January 2023. The new standard brings fundamental changes to the accounting for
takaful assets and takaful liabilities. The effective date of the standard from AAOQIF] is financial reporting year,
beginning on or after 1 January 2025. This standard applies to the Takaful Institution (including, :n their
capacity of being Takaful operator) and their managed participants’ Takaful fund {PTF} in respect of

- Takaful arrangements, including re-Takaful arrangements issued;

- Re-Takaful arrangements held;

- Investment contracts, with or without discretionary features that are issued along with, and being part of,
the Takaful arrangements; and

- Ancillary transactions related to Takaful operations.

Accounting for Takaful arrangements - under general / variable fee approach
Combining and separating corponents of Takalul amangements

Unbundling of non-Takaful components

A Takaful arrangement may confain one or mare non-Takaful components, such as an mvestment or service
component (generally in the form of a separate contract} or a promise to provide a good or service. The
Company separates {unbundles) the components when they are distinet and measurable

Where different components are unbundled, the Takaful instilution ensures appropnate attribution to the
Participants Takaful Fund, the Participant Investment Fund and the front-end fee, if any, charged to the
participant. Such unbundling of non-Takaful components are performed before the Takaful component 15
recognised in the books of PTF,

The accounting trealment of non-Takaful components is made inline with the relevant AAOIF! FASs. as
applicable.

Accounting for related Takaful arrangements

The Takaful institution may elect to present a set or series of Takaful arrangements, especially with the same
or related participant(s), as one whole arrangement after determining that the rights. obligations, risks and
rewards, as well as eligibility for surplus distribution are similar in nature, This eleclion is be made immediately
after the Takaful institution has made an assessment that combining the Takaful arrangements will faithfully
represent lhe accounting trealments and the overall commercial effect after ensuring that the combination is
not in conflict with Shari'ah principles and rules.
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.
NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fer the year ended 31 December 2025

3 SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Accounting for Takaful: Recognition and Measurement (continued)
Accounting for related Takaful arrangements (confinued)

Level of aggregation of Takaful arrangements

The Takaful institution aggregates the Takafu! arrangements into distinct portfolios that are subject to similar
risks and are managed together. Arrangements within a product line are expecled to be in the same portfolio if
they are managed together, whereas arrangements in different product lines are expected not to have similar
risks even when managed together.

The Takaful institution divides a portfolio of issued Takaful arrangements into groups (at the minimum) of:

- arrangements that are onerous at initial recognition; and

- arrangements that have no significant possibility of subsequently turning into becoming onerous from
inception; and

- the remaining arrangements in the portfalio,

A set of arrangements is determined to be onerous or have no significant possibility of subsequendly turming
into / becoming onerous when the Takaful institution makes an assessment of the set of arangements based
on reasonable and supportable information. If reasonable and supporiable information is not available for a set
of arangements {elected to be assessed together) for the determination of the group to which such Takaful
arrangements belong, then the same is based on the assessment of the individual arrangements.

Where the general approach is applied. the Takaful Inslitutton makes an assessment as to whether
arrangemenis are not onerous at initial recognition or have no significant possibility of subsequently turning
inte 7 becoming onerous. The assessment is based on the following

- the likelihood that any change in assumplions, which, if occurred, would resull in the Takaful
arrangement tuming into / becoming onerous. and
- the estimates provided by the Takaful institution's internal reporting system.

When the Takaful institution is making an assessment as to whether the Takaful arrangements are not
onerous at initial recognition but have a significant possibility of subsequently turning onerous, the information
collected by the Takaful institution’s internal reporting system 15 considared, and the Takaful institution is not
required to gather any additional Information.

Subdivision of groups
The Takaful inslitulion may subdivide the groups based on dilferent levels of profitability or the different
possibilities of arrangements turning onerous after initial recognition.

Takaful arrangements are included in a different group if issued more than ong year apart.
Initial recognition

Timing of initial recognition
The Takaful institution recognises a Takaful arrangement it issues, in the books of PTF. at the earlier of

- The date when a participant becomes a member of the PTF (and accordingly becomes entilled {o the
Takaful benefits in the form of sharing of risks), which may be evidenced through either the payment of
contribution or issuance of Takaful arrangement documents or

- The date when Ihe Takalul arrangement, being part of a group or an unaveidable commitment to the
Takaful arrangement, becomes onerous {even if it happens before the date applicable).
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accounting for Takaful: Recognition and Measurement {continued)
Initial recognition (continued)

Measurement of the provision for a Takaful arrangement at initial recognition
At initial recognition, the provision for a Takaful arrangement is measured at the total of the following
eslimates:

Takaful fulfilment cashflows, pertaining to PTF, comprising of.
- an estimate of gross future cashfiows (including, and dislinguishing, the cashflows related to
Wakala fee;
deferred cost being the difference between gross future cashflows and their respective fair value of
future cashiflows:
- risk adjustment for the non-financial risks; and
- the Takaful residual margin

The Takaful institution includes all future cashflows within the boundary of a Takaful arrangement. Such a
measurement:

- objectively incorporates all reasonable and supportable information available. without undue cost or
effort, about the amount and timing by using a probability-weighted means of the full range of expected
outcomes;
is reflective of the institution's assessments of the market variables and is consistent with the
observable market prices for those variablas;
reflects the current conditions at the measurement dale; and
distinguishes the adjustments to non-financial risk from other estimates and estimate cash flows
disregarding adustments for financial risks unless the most appropriate measurement technique
implicitly includes financial risks and the effect is inseparable.

The cashflows arising from substaniive rights and obligations existing at the reporting date are considerad
within the boundary year. This boundary year is the year in which the Takaful institution can compel the
participant to pay the contribution or in which the PTF has a substantive obligation to provide benefits to the
participants.

A substantive right lo provide benefits ends when the Takaful institution is able to reassess the risks of the
particular participants, or for a Takaful arrangement as a whole, and can set or raset he price or the level of
benefils according to the reassessment if so allowed under Shari'ah principles and rules.

A liability or an asset is not be recognised relating to an expected contribution or expected claim for benefits
that is outside the boundary of the Takaful arrangement. Such amounts refate to future Takaful arrangements.

The Takaful institution adjusts the estimate of the future cashflows and their fair values to reflect the effect of
risk adjustment for non-financial risk for the PTF for bearing the uncertainty about the amount and timing of
the cashflows.

Mudarib’'s share or Wakala fee {Including incenlives, if any) for investment management for PTF's
investments (excluding Participant investment Fund's investments) are considered part of Takaful fulfiiment
cashflows and are adeguately disclosed.

Surplus distribution, if any, and waiver of Qard Hasan, if any, are not part of the fulfilment cashflows.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Accounting for Takaful: Recognition and Measurement (continued)
Initial recognition (continued}

initial recognition of Takaful residual margin
The Takaful residual margin is measured as the difference of:

- the amount of Takaful fulfilment cashflows {including all its components) that was initially recognised

- any cashflows arising from the Takaful arrangement at that date; and
- the derecognition of any asset for Takaful acquisiion cashflows and any other asset or liability
previously recognised relating to the cashflows of the arrangement at the date of initial recognition.

Initial recognition of onerous arrangements

A Takalful arrangement is onercus at the date of initial recognition, if the Takaful fulfilment cash flows, any
previously recognised Takaful acquisition cashflows and any cash flows arising from the Takaful arrangement
at the dale of initial recogniticn, in total are a net outflow. Such a Takaful arrangement is separately classified
fror the Takaful arrangements that are not enerous.

A loss in the statement of income as activities of the managed PTF for the net outflow for onerous
arangements 1S recognised, resulting in the carrying amount of the provision for Takaful arrangement being
equal to the Takaful fulfilment cashflows and the Takaful residual margin being zero.

A significant number of onerous arrangements, depending on the business realilies, may imply an act of
potential negligence by the Takaful institution in its capacity as an agent of the PTF. This may particularly be
more relevant where the Wakala fee is excessive. In rare circumstances, in line with the relevant Shari'ah
principles and rules or regulatory requirements, such negligence situations may require the recognition of a
receivable from the agent. Such receivables form part of the Takaful fulfilment cashflows.

The Takaful mstitution identifies a group of onerous arrangemenls as a set instead of individual arrangements.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement of the provision for a Takalul arrangement

The carrying amount of the provision for a Takaful arrangement at the end of each reporting year is the sum
of:

- the provision for the remaining entitlement year comprising of.
- the Takaful fulfiiment cash flows related to future benefits allocated to the Takaful arrangement at
that date;
- Ihe Takaful residual margin of the Takaful arrangement at that date; and
- the lability for incurred claims, comprising of Takaful fulfiiment cash flows related to the past benefits
allocated to the Takaful arrangement at that date.

The income and expenses are recognised in the statement of iIncome as activities of the managed PTF for the
following changes in the carrying amount of the provision for rematining entitlement period:

- recognise contribution {as an income) representing the reduction in the provision for the remaining
entitiement year because of benefits provided during the year:

- expenses representing losses (and any reversal of losses) on onerous arrangements, and

- amortisation (or adjustment) of deferred cost {including any experience adjusiment and financial risk
elements).

Recognised contribution {as an ingcome) are recognised when benefits are provided for a period. with a
simultaneous reduction in the provision for the remaining entitlement year. Such a reduction {or change} in
provision for the remaining entitliement year {that does not relate to the benefits atiributable to the current year)
does not include the following
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accounting for Takaful: Recoanition and Measurement (continued)

Subsequent measurement {continued)

Subsequent measurement of the provision for a Takaful arrangerment (continued)

cash inflows from contribution received;

transaction-based taxes collected on behalf of third parties;

{akaful acquisition cash flows;

derecognition of liabilities transferred to third parties; and

changes that relate to benefits attributable but for which compensalion is nol expected, i.e., increases
and decreases in lhe loss component of the provision for the remaining entitlement year.

The income and expenses are recognised in the statement of income as activities of the managed PTF for the
following changes in the carrying amount of the liability for incurred claims for benefits.

expenses representing the increase in liability because of claims for benefit and expenses incurred in
the period;

expenses representing subsequent changes in Takaful fulfilment cash flows relating to incurred claims
and expenses; and

amedtisation {or adjustment) of deferred cost (including any experience adjustment and financial risk
elements} as applicable on amounts excluding established payables {debts). Established payables are
not be subject lo fair value measurement, in accordance wilh Shari'ah principles and rules.

Subsequent measurement does not take into account any experience adjustments, if any, that may arise

in respect of the receipts of contribution {and any relaled cash flows such as Takaful acquisition cash
flows and directly related laxes} — being the difference between the estimate at the beginning of the
year of the amounts expected for the year and the aclual cash flows during the period; or

in respect of the Takaful acquisition cash flows - being the difference between the eslimale at the
beginning of the year of the amounts expected for the year and the actual costs incurred during the
period.

Subsequent measurement of Takaful residual margin

The Takaful residual margin at the end of the reporling year represents the surplus in the Takaful
arrangements that have nol yet been recognised in the statement of income as activities of the managed PTF
because it relates to the future benefits to be provided under the Takaful arrangement.

The carrying amount of the Takaful residual margin of a Takaful arrangement at the end of the reporting year
equals the carrying amount at the start of the reporting year adjusted for:

the effect of any new arrangements added, in case of accounting being performed collectively for a

group;

the amortisation of deferred Takaful residual margin over the entillement year - through a systemalic

method reflecting the pattern of utilisation of entithement for benefits;

the changes in Takaful fulfilment cash flows relating to future benefits, except:

«  the increases in the Takaful fulfilment cash flows that exceed the carrying amount of the Takaful
residual margin, giving rise lo a loss, or

- the decreases in the Takaful fulfilment cash flows that are allocated to the loss component of the
provision for the remaining entittement period.

the effect of any currency exchange differences on the Takaful residual margin; and

the contribution recognised as income in the statemenl of income as aclivities of the managed PTF

because of the provision of benefits in the period, determined by the allocation of the Takaful residual

margin remaining at the end of the reporting period (before any allocation) over the current and

remaining entilement period,
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accounting for Takaful: Recoanition and Measurement {(continued)
Subsequent measurament {continued)

Subsequen! measurement of Takafud residual margin (conlinued)

Certain changes in the Takaful residual margin offset changes in the Takaful fulfilment cash Rows for the
provision for the remaining entilement year, resulling in no change in the total carrying amount of the
provision for the remaining entitterent year. To the extent that changes in the Takaful residual margin do not
offset changes in the Takaful fulfilment cash flows for the provision for the remaining entitlement year, the
income and expenses for the changes are recognised in the statement of income as aclivities of the managed
PTF.

Thea Takaful residual margin recognised during the year is taken to the statement of income as activilies of the
managed PTF.

The Takaful institution may decides to follow the variable fee approach (VFA) instead of the general approach,
in the case of Takaful arangements having a direct investment component in form of a PIF. In such case, the
institution has an accounting policy in respect of the subsequent changes in the Takaful residual margin. to
the extent that these relate to the financial fisks (including the changes in the investment returns in PIF), n a
manner that such proportion of provision for Takaful residual margin that relates to the future entilement years
may not be immediately recognised and apportioned aver the remaining entitlernent period.

Subsequent changes in onerous amangements

A Takaful arrangement becomes onerous (or mare onerous) on subsequent measurement, if the carrying
amount {unamortised) of the Takaful residual margin is less than the unfavorable changes in the Takaful
fulfilment cash flows allocated to the Takaful arrangement relating to future benefits,

After the recognition of a loss on an onerous arrangement, the subsequent changes in the eslimates of
Takaful fulfilment cash flows for the remaining entittement year are allocated on a systematic basis between

- the loss component of the provision for remaining entitlement year; and
- the provision for the remaining enlitiernent year, excluding the loss component.

Any subsequent decrease in Takaful fulfilment cash flows arising from changes in estimates of future cash
flows relating to future benefits and any subsequent increases in the PTF's share in the fair value of the
underlying assets is allocated solely 1o the loss component until that component is reduced to zero, The
Takaful institution adjusted the Takaful residual margin only once the loss component has been reduced 1o
zero.

The loss component is the amount equivalent to the total amount recognised in the stalement of income as
activities of the managed PTF to date, on initial recognition or subsequent measurement of the Takaful
arrangement as onerous (net of any already recognised reversals).

The subsequent changes in ihe Takaful fulfilment cash flows for the remaining entitlement year to be allocated
includes.

- estimates of the fair value of the future cash flows for claims and expenses released {i.e.. the difference
between the opening estimate against the closing estimate} from the provision for the remaining
enlitlement year because of incurred Takaful benefit costs

- changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk recognised in the statement of income as activities
of the managed PTF because of the release of risk; and

- amortisation of deferred cost - through a syslemic method reflecting the pattern of utilisation of
entitiement for benefits, as applicable.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Accounting for Takaful: Recognition and Measurement {continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Derecognition
The Takalul institution derecognises a Takaful arrangement when, and only when:

- it is extinguished, i.e., when the obligations specified in the arrangement are expired, discharged or
cancelled, or

. the terms of the arrangement are modified by mutual agreement or by a change in regulations, and the
Takaful instilution recognises the modified arrangement as a new arrangement.

Recognition and presentation in the statement of income as activities of the managed PTF

- The carmrying amount of the following is presented separately in the slatement of income as position of
the managed PTF:
- Takaful arrangements issued that are assets;
- Takaful arrangements issued that are liabilities;
- re-Takaful amangements issued that are assets; and
- re-Takaful arangements issued that are Rabilities.

The PTF presents income or expenses from re-Takaful arrangements held separately from the expenses or
income from the Takaful arrangements

The Takaful expenses include incurred benefils, olher expenses, changes related to past benefils and
changes to future benefits (including losses on onerous arrangements and reversal thereof).

The income or expenses from a group of re-Takaful arrangements held may either be presented as a single
amount or presented separalely as the amounts recovered from the re-Takaful and an allocation of the
contribution paid that together result in a net amount equal to that single amount.

Accounting for Takaful arrangements - under contribution allocation approach

Application crileria for the contribulion affocation approach
A simplified approach, namely the contribution allocation approach, is used to recognise, measure and report
a Takaful arrangement if at the inception of the Takaful arrangement, either of the following condition is met:

- it is a reasonable expectation that such simplification would produce a measurement of the provision of
the remaining entittement year for the Takaful arrangement would nolt differ malenally from the one
produced by applying the requirements of "Accounling for Takaful arrangements - under the general
approach / variable fee approach”; or

- the entitlement year of each Takaful arrangement (including the entitlement for benefits arising n
respect of all contribulions) is one year or less,

If at the inceplion of the Takaful arrangement, the Takaful institution expects significant variability in the
Takaful tulfilment cash flows that would affect the measurement of the provision for he remaining entitlement
year. Variability in the Takaful fulfilment cash flows increases with the following:

- the extent of future cash flows relating to the Takalul arrangement; and
- the length of the enlitiement year of the Takaful arrangements

Any general requirements contained in "Accounting for Takafu! arrangements - under general approach /
variable fee approach”. may also apply to the contribution allocation approach unless contradicting with any
specific requirements of "Accounting for Takaful arrangements - under contribution allocation approach”.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Accounting for Takaful: Recognition and Measurement (continued}
Initial recognition

Assessmenl for onerous or potentially (in future) onerous arrangements

Where the contribution allocation approach is applied, the Takaful institution generally considers the whole
portfolio at the time of initial recognition as not being onerous. However, if it is apparent (or there exists a
significant risk) based on the facts and circumstances, then the Takaful institution shall perform an
assessment in respect of.

- such arrangement(s) in the porifolio that are onerous in nature; and / or
- such arrangement(s) in the portfolio has a significant possibility of subsequently turning onerous.

On initial recognition, the provision for the remaining entitement year is measured under the contribution
allocation approach as follows.

- the contribution, if any, received (or receivable} at initial recognition

- less: Wakala fee;

- less: any Takaful acquisition cash flows at that date unless these are recognised as expenses, and

- add or less: the amount arising from the derecognition at the date of the asset or liability recognised for
Takaful acquisilion cash flows.

In applying the contribution allocation approach, the Takaful institution:

- may choose to recognise any Takaful acquisition cash flows as expenses when il incurs those costs,
provided that the entitlement year of each Takaful arrangement at initial recogaition is not more than
one year; and

- measures the liability for incurred ¢laims for the Takaful arrangemenis and the Takaful fulfilment cash
flows relating to incurred claims. However, the Takaful institution is not required to adjust future cash
flows for the difference between the tolal cash flows and the fair value of those cash flows if those cash
flows are expected to be paid or received in one year of less from the date the claims are incurred.

In case lhe cash outfiows are spread over a year of more than one year, and the difference between the total
expected cash outflows and their fair value is matenial. the Takaful inslitulion adjusts the carrying amount of
the provision for remaining entitlement year lo its fair value and records such difference initially as deferred
cost.

Subsaquent measurement
At the end of each subsequent reporting year, the carrying amount of the provision for the remaining
entitiement year is:

- the carrying amount at the beginning of the reporting year;

- add : the contributions received during the year;

- less: Takaful acquisition cash flows, unless they are recognised as an expense;

- add: amortisation of Takaful acquisition cash flows recognised as expense (if applicable}),

- less: amortisation of any deferred Takaful acquisilion cash flows, if such deferred Takaful acquisition
cash flows are recognised in line with the requirements of the standard;

- add: the amount recognised as earned Takaful contributions against the entitlement for benefits
aftributable to that year; and

- less: any investment component (from PIF) paid or transferred to the liability for incurred claims.

When the contribution allocation approach is applied, the amount of recognised contribution for the year is the
amount of expected contributions allocated to the year. The expected contribulions are allocated 1o each year:

- on the basis of the passage of time; but
- if the expected paltern of release of risk during lhe entittement year differs significantly from the passage
of time basis, then on the basis of the expected timing of incurred Takaful benefits.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accounting for Takaful: Recoqnition and Measurement {continued)

Onerous arrangements
If at any time during the entittement period. facts and circumstances indicate that a Takaful arrangement is
onerous, the Takaful institution performs a computation of excess I shortfall of the following

- the carrying amount of the provision for remaining entitlement period. and
- the Takaful fulilment cash flows that relate 1o the remaining entitlement period of the Takaful
arrangement.

In case of a shortfall of the carrying amount of the provision for the remaining entittement year against Takaful
fulfilment cash flows relating to the remaining enlittement year of the Takaful arrangement, the Takaful
institulion recognises a loss in the statement of income as activities of the managed PTF and increase the
provision for remaining entitliement year by such amount of shortfall.

Accounting for re-Takaful arrangements held by the PTF

General approach for re-Takaful arrangements held

The Takalful institution divides porifolios of re-Takaful arangements held by applying the requirements of
"Accounting for Takaful arrangements - under general approach / variable fee approach" except that the
references to onerous arrangements therein are replaced by a reference to arrangements on which there is a
nel gain on nitial recognition. Such gain compensates for losses ansing in PTF on account of the onerous
arrangements.

Any general requirements contained in “Accounting for Takaful arrangements - under general approach {
variable fee approach”, also applies to the accounting for re-Takaful arrangements held unless contradicting
with any specific requirements of "Accounting for re-Takaful arrangements held by the PTF".

Initial recognition
The PTF recognises an asset (of provision, as the case may be) for re-Takaful arrangements held

- if the re-Takaful arrangements held provide a proportionate entitlement year - at the beginning of the
entitlement year of the re-Takaful arrangement held or at the initial recognition of any underlying Takaful
arrangement {whereby in case of underlying onerous arrangement. the corresponding effect is
immediately recognised), whichever is the later, and

- n all other cases — from the beginning of the entitlement year of the re-Takaful arrangement held

A re-Takaful arrangement held that provides proportionate benefits against underying Takaful arrangements are
not be initially recognised until the date that any underying Takaful arrangement(s) is initially recognised if that date
15 later than the beginning of the entitlement year of such re-Takaful arrangement.

If the net cost of acquisition of re-Takaful arrangements has entitliement for benefis relating to events that
have already occurred, such cost is immediately recognised in the statement of income as aclivities of the
managed PTF.

In case a loss is recognised on initial recegnition of an onerous underlying Takaful arrangement (or on the
addition of an onerous underlying Takaful arrangement to a group). the Takaful residual margin of a related re-
Takaful arrangement held (to such extent) is immediately recognised in the statement of managed financial
aclivities of the managed PTF.

When such losses are recovered in a subsequent year, a loss-recovery component of an asset for the
remaining entitlement year is correspondingly reversed,
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Accounting for re-Takaful arrangements held by the PTF {(continued)
General approach for re-Takaful arrangements held (continued)

Subsequent measurement

In applying the measurement requirements lo re-Takaful arrangements held, the PTF applies consistent
assumplions to measure the estimates of the fair value of the future cash flows for such re-Takaful
amangements held and the estimales of the fair value of the future cash flows for the underlying Takaful
arrangements,

In respect of the re-Takaful arrangements held, the PTF also includes the risk of non-performance by the re-
Takaful provider {including effects of collateral and losses from disputes) in the estimate of the future cash
flows, as well as, their fair value.

The PTF determines the risk adjustment for non-financial risk so that it represents the amount of nsk being
transferred by the holder of the re-Takaful arrangements 1o the issuer of those re-Takaful arrangements,

Takaful residual margin on initial recognition, in respect of re-Takaful arrangements held, is subject to the
following modifications:

- the PTF recognises any net cost or net gain (instead of unearned margin) on the acquisition of the re-
Takaful amangements held as a Takaful residual margin measured at an amount equal to the sum of
the Takaful fulfiiment cash flows, the amount derecognised at that date of any asset or liability
previously recognised for cash flows related to the re-Takaful arrangements held and any cash flows
arising at that date: unless

- the net cost of acquiring re-Takaful entittement relates to events that ocourred before the acquisition of
the re-Takaful arrangements. in which case, such a cost is immediately be recognised in the statement
of income as activities of ihe managed PTF as an expense.

The Takaful residual margin at the end of the reporting year in respect of re-Takaful arrangements held is
computed as the carrying amount determined at the start of the reporting year, adjusted for:

- the effect of any new arrangements:
- amortisation of deferred cost added back to the carrying amount of the Takaful residual margin;
- changes in the Takaful fulfilment cash flows to the extent that the change
- relates to the fulure benefits entitlement; unless
- it results from a change in the Takaful fulfilment cash flows allocated to the underlying Takaful
arcangement that does not adjust the Takaful residual margin for the underlying Takaful
arrangement;
- the effect of any currency exchange differences ansing on the Takaful residual margin; and
- the amount recognised in the statement of income as aclivities of the managed PTF because of
benefits received in the year. determined by the allocation of the Takaful residual margin remaining at
the end of the reporting year of the re-Takaful arangements held.

Changes in the Takaful fulfiment cash flows that result from changes in the risk of non-performance by the
issuer of a re-Takaful contract held do not relate to future benefits and is not adjust the Takaful residual
margin.

A re-Takaful arrangement held cannot be onerous under the requirements of this standard.,
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Accounting for re-Takaful arrangements held by the PTF (continued)

Contribution allocation approach for re-Takaful arrangements held

The Takaful institulion may use the contribution allocation approach {adapted to reflect the features of re-
Takaful arrangemenis held that differ fram Takaful arrangements issued, for example, the generation of
expenses or reduction in expenses rather than revenue) to simplify the measurement of re-Takalul contracts
held, if at the inception of the Takaful arangement:

- the Takaful institution reasonably expects the resulting measurement would not differ materially from the
result of applying the requirements of other available approaches; or

- the entitlement year of each of the re-Takaful arrangements held (including an enlitlement for benefits
from all contributions within the Takaful arrangemeant boundary is one year of less.

If at the inception of the Takaful arrangement, the Company expects significant variability in the Takaful
fulfilment cash flows that would affect the measurement of the asset for remaining entitlement for benefits
during the year before a claim is incurred. Variability in the Takaful fulfilment cash flows increases with, for
example:

- the extent of future cash flows relating to the Takaful arrangement; and
- the length of the enfillerment year of the re-Takafu! arrangements held.

The Company has not disclosed the transition impact upon adoption of FAS 43 becausa the cost of prowding
this disclosure, which would include the running of parallel systems, would exceed the benefits. particuiarly
because previous slandards permitied an entity to use a wide range of practicas.

Separation of accounting records

The assets, liabilities and owners' equily, as well as, income and expenditure, gains and losses of the Takaful
aperator shall be recorded and reported separately and distinctly from the assets, liabilities and surplus /
deficit and related income and expenditure, gains and losses of the managed PTF or the managed PIF.

In the books of the Takaful operator

The Takaful operator shall recognise in ils books the initial seed money as an expense at the earlier of.
- paymerit of seed money to the PTF; or
- making an irrevocable commiiment for such payment.

in the books of the PTF
The PTF shall recognise the initial seed money received / receivable from the Takaful operator as PTF equity
at the earlier of:

- payment of seed money ta the PTF; or

- making an irrevocable commitment for such payment.

Transfer of assets between various funds
At times, there is a need lo transfer assets {including cash, investments or other assets) between the Takaful
operator and the PTF or PIF managed by the Takatul operator for routine business operations.

There is a rebuttable presumption that such assets, in line with the Shar'ah principles and rules, are
transferred between the Takaful operator and any of the managed funds or between two of the managed
funds at fair value{considering these are arms’ length transactions).

A Takatul institution shall apply, in respect of all such transfers of assets, the disclosure requirements wilh the
respective AAGIFI FAS 7.In addition, if the basis of valuation applied for the transfer of such assels is other
than the fair value of such assels as of the date of transfer, the Takaful institution shall disclose the difference
in the value applied with the fair value, as well as, the reasons for applying the value other than the fair value,
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accounting for re-Takaful arrangements held by the PTF [continued})
Surplus / deficit determination and surplus distribution

Surplus / deficit determination

Takaful surplus or Takaful deficit shall be determined as the net surplus or deficit for the reporting year
appearing in the statement of income as aclivities of the managed PTF. in line with the requirements of this
standard read with the requirements of FAS 42 “Presentation and Disclosures in the Financial Statements of
TFakaful Institutions”, after due transfers from / to the technical reserves,

In case a Takaful institution determines surplus / deficit in respect of a PTF in a manner different from the
requirements of the standard, the basis of determinalion of the same, along with the rationale for the same.,
shall be disclosed.

In case of deficit, the Takaful operator generally provides a Qard Hasan to the PTF.

A Takaful institution shall disclose the accumulated amounts of deficit in the PTF and its projections {at least
for five years) wilh regard to the probable surplus in future years 1o compensate for such deficits.

Qard Hasan=recognition and measurement in the books of the PTF

In case of a deficit {or liquidity shortfall), the Takaful operater may decide (or may be required by virlue of the
relevant regulations) to give a Qard Hasan to ihe PTF. This Qard Hasan has the nalure of a termporary, profit-
free loan that shall be payable when the PTF accrues a surplus (and / or generates sufficient liquidity).

Initial Recognition
The PTF shall recognise the Qard Hasan received from the Takaful operator as a liability at the par value of
the amount received.

Subsequent Measurement
The PTF shall subsequently measure the liability for Qard Hasan at par value, accounting for any payments /
repayments / adjustments during the period.

Waiver of Qard Hasan

Where the Takaful operator waives off its right to receive the Qard Hasan from the PTF, according to
regulatory requirements or otherwise, the PTF shall immediately derecognise the liability and record the
amount as its income for the year,

Qard Hasan—recognition and measurement in the books of the Takaful operator

In case of a deficit (or liquidity shortfall), the Takaful operator may decide (or may be required by virtue of the
relevant regulations} to give a Gard Hasan to the PTF. This Qard Hasan has the nature of a temporary, profit-
free loan that shall be payable when the PTF accrues a surplus (and / or generates sufficient liquidity).

Initial Recognition
The Takaful operator shall recognise the Qard Hasan extended to the PTF as a receivable at the par value of
the amount paid since it is receivable on demand.
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Accounting for re-Takaful arrangements held by the PTF {continued)
Qard Hasan-recognition and measurement in the books of the Takaful operator {continued)

Subsequen! Measurement and axpacted credit losses
The Takaful operator shall subsequently measure the receivable against Qard Hasan at par value, accounting
for any payments / repayments / adjustments during the year.

Qard Hasan receivable from the PTF shall be subject to yearly testing for expected credit losses in line with
the requirements of the relevant AAQIF! FAS 11, whereby an allowance for expected credit losses if any, shall
be maintained against such receivable. The Takaful operator shall consider, in particular, the deficit in the PTF
and the PTF's projections (at least for five years} with regard to the probable surplus in future years to
compensate for such deficits {or liquidity shortfalls) in line with the requirements of the standard,

Waiver of Qard Hasan
When the Takaful operator waives the Qard Hasan, the receivable shall be derecognised, and a
corresponding expense shall be recorded in the books of the Takaful operator.

Recognition of Wakala fee earned from PTF in the books of the Takaful operator
The Takaful operalor earns revenue in the form of Wakala (management) fee in different forms and under
various contracts, This fee may be fixed or variable in nature.

The Wakala fee charged by the Takaful operator to the PTF is generally against performance obligations for
various services / costs{excluding the investiment management function) to be classified, and the relevant
revenue recognition shall be commensurate with the relevant services as follows:

a. services initially or already delivered — hence, the related proportion of Wakala fee 1o be recognised
immedialely - including marketing services for Takaful products, initial administrative services {both
before and at the lime of issuance of a Takaful arrangement) and Takaful acquisition service cosis
meluding commissions and incentives etc.;

b. services delivered over fime-hence, the relaled proportion of Wakala fee to be recognised over such
time in a systematic manner—including supporl services during the Takaful entitlement year such as
accounting and book-keeping services, adminiskative services related to benefits ascertainment and
payment and administrative services related to re-Takaful acquisition and benefits management etc
and

c. probable refund of Wakala fee against cancelled or discontinued Takaful arrangements (if so provided
for in the Wakala contract between the Takaful institution and the PTF} - hence, the estimated effect to
be recorded as a provision for Wakala fee refund and shown as a deduction from the total Wakala fee.

The Takaful institution shall adopt accounting pelicies for the Takaful operator in line with relevant AAOIFI
FASs 1o separate the differenl components of the Wakala fee in line with the approach provided in standard,
applying an appropriate methodology for ascertaining and assessing the same. The accounting pelicies shall
also include the bases for recognition of each component of the Wakala fee and the corresponding cosis.
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Accounting for re-Takaful arrangements held by the PTF {continued)

Takaful acquisition service cost = In the books of the Takaful operator

The Takaful acquisition service costs (or gain), including the allocaton charges related to a Takaful
arrangement that is received (or receivable) and paid (or payable) before the Takaful arrangement is
recognised, shall be recorded as either:

a,  an asset or liability in the books of the Takaful operalor to be amorlised over a year commensurate with
the corresponding flow of economic benefits—provided that:
i. any such assel shall be subject to testing for impairment on a yearic basis, and
ii. in case of cancellation of the respeclive Takaful arrangement. the hiability may be extinguished,
and asset may be fully impaired immediately; or
b.  as an expense or income in the books of the Takaful institution immediately.

Takaful operator’s investment management fee / share of investment income from PIF and PDF

Mudarib’s share

The Takaful operator shall recognise the Modarib's share arising out of investment profits from the PTF and
PIF after adjusting for any risk reserves, as per contractual arrangements in line with the Shari‘ah principles
and niles, as its revenue, at the end of each reporting year.

Wakala fee: fixed, variable and performance incentive

The Takaful operator shall recognise the fixed Wakala fee, as well as, any variable Wakala fee which is not in
form of a performance incentive, as its revenue in line with the contractual arrangements as it establishes right
on such revenue and the same may be measurable with reasonable cerlainty

The Takaful operalor shall recognise the variable element of the Wakala fee, which is in form of a
performance incentive, at the end of each reporting year. However, if such an incentive is contractually
determined al a later stage, the same shall be recognised once it is determined.

Corresponding recognilion by the PTF and PIF
The PTF and PIF shall recognise corresponding cosls for the items provided in the standard at the same time
ag the Takatul operalor recognises its revenue.

Allocation charges

The Takaful operator shall recognise the allocation charges (including, Wakala fee / front-end fee etc., by
whatever name called} recovered / recoverable from the participants in respect of the investment made in PIF
as a part of net Takaful acquisition service cost (or gain) in line with the requirements of the standard.

The Takaful operator shall recognise the allocation charges (including, Wakala fee charges / front-end fee
elc., by whatever name called) charged to the participants in respect of the invesiment made in PIF as a part
of net Takaful acquisition service cost (or gain} in line with the requirements of the standard.

The allocation charges shall be disclosed by the Takatul operalor separately from other Wakala fees.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Accounting for re-Takaful arrangements held by the PTF (continued)

Transitional provisions
A Takaful institution, al the time of the first time adoption of this standard, shall follow one of the following
approaches:

a. a full retrospective approach - whereby the effects of lransition shall be incorporated from the beginning
of the earliest year presented in the financial statements. however, the disclosure of the effect of such
adoption in respect of each line tem and to the basic and diluted earnings per share shall not be
mandatory; or

b. a modified retrospective approach — whereby the effects of transition shall be taken fo the retained
eamings of the Takaful institution, as well as, accumulated surplus / deficit in the respective Takaful
funds al the beginning of the current financial year; or

c. a fair value approach — whereby the Takaful residual margin or loss component of the provision for the
remaining entitternent year, at the transition date (beginning of the current year) shall be determined as
the difference between the fair value of the Takaful arrangements at that date and the fair value of the
fulfilment cash flows measured at that date, and the corresponding effects shall be adjusted in the
retained eamings of the Takaful institution, as well as, accumulated surplus / deficit in the respective
Takaful funds.

Impairment, credit losses and onerous commitments

FAS 230 was issued in November 2017. The requirements relating to impairment and credit lesses of FAS 30
represent a significant change from FAS 11 "Provisions and Reserves™. As permitted by FAS 30, the standard
will be modified retrospective approach and accordingly the comparative amounts will not be restated. FAS 30
replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in FAS 11 with Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. The new impairment
model also applies 1o certain financing commitments and financial guarantee contracts but not to equily
investments.

FAS 30 was introduced in order to overcome the delay in recognition of impainment and thus moves from an
incurred loss model to an expected loss model. This model accounts for increasing credit risk to assess and
compute loss allowances. The amount of expected credit loss (ECL) recognised as a loss allowance or
provision depends on the extent of credit deterioration since initial recognition.

Under the general approach, there are two measurement basis

- 12-month ECLs (Stage 1), which applies to all exposures (from initial recognition} as long as there is no
significant deterioration in credit quality, and

- Lifelime ECLs (Stage 2 and Stage 3). which apples when a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred on an individual or collective basis.

12-month ECLS will be calculated for all Stage 1 exposures and fifelime ECLs will be calculated for all Stage 2
and Stage 3 exposures.

An atternative to this approach is the simplified approach, which is required for receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component. For trade and other receivables, it is an accounting pohcy choice to follow
the simplified approach. Under the simplified approach, loss is calculated on lifetime ECLs rather than the two-
stage process under the general approach. Tracking of credit risk 's not required, instead the approach
requires a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date. right from origination.
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The Company's portfolio is made up of the following asset classes:

- Cash and cash equivalents

- Term deposils

- Financial assels at amorlised cost
- Financial assets at fair value

- Other receivables

The general approach to ECL calculation applies to the Cash and cash equivalents, term deposits, financial
assets at amortised cost and financial assets at fair value. The simplified approach to ECL calculation apphes
to other receivables.

Risk reserves

FAS 35 intends to establish the principles of accounting and financial reporting for risk reserves established to
miligate various risks faced by stakeholders, mainly the profit and loss taking investors. of Islamic financial
institutions

tnvestment in sukuk, shares and similar instruments

FAS 33 aims at setting out principles for the classification, recognition, measurement. presentation. and
disclosure of investment in sukuk. shares and other similar instruments of investments made by Islamic
financial instilution. The standard defines the key types of instruments of Sharia’s compliant investments and
the primary accounting treatments commensurate to the characteristic and business madel of institution under
which the investments are made, managed and held.

This standard supersedes FAS 25 *Investment in Sukuk”. For the purpose of this standard. each investment is
to be categorized as one of the below investment categories depending on its nature:

- Monetary Debt-type instrument;

- Non-monetary Debt-type instrument;
- Equity-type instrument; and

- Qther investment instruments.
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Investment in sukuk, shares and similar instruments (continued)

Classification

Unless the irrevocable Initial recognition choices provided below are exercised, the Company classifies
investments subject to this slandard as subsequently measured at either {i) amortised cost. (i) fair value
through equity or (ii) fair value through statement of income, on the basis of both the Company's business
moedel for managing investments and the expected cash flow characteristics of the investiment.

Investment in a monelary debt-type instrument. as it reflects a debt at the back-end, shall be classified and
measured at cost, till the time the transaction at the back-end is executed, and at amortised cost thereafter

Investment in a non-monetary debt-type instrument or other investment instrumenti, may be classified under
any of the three categories depending on the Company's business model.

Invesiment in equity-type mstrument is classified as investment at fair value through statement of income
uniess the Company makes an irrevocable classification choice at inilial recognilion to classify lhis as
investmeant at fair value through equity.

An investment held for trading purposes shall always fall in fair value through statement of income
classification.

Recognition and Initial measurement

All investment shall be initially recognised at therr value plus transaction costs except for investments at fair
value through statement of income. Transaction costs relating to investments at fair value through statement
of income are charged 1o the statement of income when incurred. A regular way purchase of investments shall
be recognised upon the transfer of control to investor.

Subsequent measurament

Investments at amortised cost

Investments carried at amortised cost shall be re-measured as such using the effective profit rate method. All
gains or losses arising from lhe amortisalion process and those arising frem de-recognition or impairment of
the investment, are recognised in the statement of income. Investment camied at amortised cost shall be
tested for impairment at each reporting year in accordance with FAS 30 “Impairment, credit losses and
onerous commitments”.

invesiments at fair vaiue through statement of income

Investment carried al fair value through statement of income shall be re-measured at fair value at end of each
reporting year. The resultant remeasurement gain or loss, if any being the difference batwaan the carryng
arount and the fair value shall be recognised in the statement of income.

Investments at fair value through equity

Investment carried at fair value through equity shall be re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
year. The resultant re-measurement gain or loss, if any, being the difference between the carrying amount and
the fair value shall be directly recognised in equity under “invesiments fair value reserve”. Investment carried
at fair value through equity shall be lested for impairment at each reporting year in accordance with FAS 30
“Impairment, credit losses and onerous commitments”.

Reclassiflcation

When, and only when, the Company changes ils business model for managing investments, it shall reclassify
all affected financial assets prospectively from the reclassification date. In case of reclassification. the
Company shall not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or
returns/ profits.

Share-based payments plan

Employees (including senior execulives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments against one-time award and/or long-term incentive plan, whereby emgployees render services over
the vesting period as consideration. Since the Company awards shares of the ultimate parent and the
Company has the obligation to settle the share-based payments, lhe same is accounted for as cash-settled
share-based payment transactions. Liabilites are recognised as employee benefit expanses over the relavarnt
service period based on the estimated number of rights that are expected fo vest. The liabilities are presented
as employee benefit obligations and remeasured to fair value at each reporting date, with any measurement
changes recognised in profit or loss as employee benefit expense. Where share appreciation rights are
forfeited due to a failure by the employee to salisfy the service conditions, the liability is derecognised, and
expenses previously recognised are reversed.
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Financial reporting for Zakah
AAOIFI has issued FAS 39 Financial Reporting for Zakah in 2021.

This standard shall apply to an instilution with regard to the recognition, presentation and disclosure of Zakah
attributable to relevant stakeholders. While computation of Zakah shall be generally applicable individually to
each inslitution within a group, this standard shall be applicable on alt consolidated and separate / standalone
financial statements of an institution,

This standard does not prescribe any specific melhod for determining the Zakah base and measuring Zakah
due for a period. An institution shall refer to applicable relevant authoritative guidance, regulatory
requirements, or guidance from the institution’s Shari'a Supervisory Board to determine the Zakah base and
measure Zakah due for a period.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash in hand and at bank and shori-term deposits with original
maturities of three months or less

Term deposits
Term deposits comprise long-term deposits with original maturities of more than three months.

Statutory deposits

Stalutory deposit is a financial deposit maintained as regulated by the Central Bank of Bahrain (CBB) and
Financial Institutions Law, 2006. Siatutory deposils are claasified as "Restricted Cash” as it cannot be
accessed or utilised for general business operations. Such deposits cannot be withdrawn without the
permission of the Central Bank of Bahrain.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment, including owner-occupied property, is stated at cost, excluding the costs of day to
day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and accumutated impairment losses. Replacement or major
inspection costs are capitalized when incurred and if it is probable that future economic benefils associated
with the item will flow fo the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives and method are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate al each
financial year end.

Impairment reviews are perfarmed when there are indicators that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of income as an expense

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no fulure economic benefils are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} is included in the
statement of income in the year the asset is derecognised.

Following are the useful lives of classes of property and equipment

Buildings on freehold lands 25 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment's 3-10 years
Vehicles 4 years
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intangible assets

The software is recognized as an intangible asset at cost. The cost includes purchase price, any directly
atfributable costs of preparing the asset for its intended use, and any subsequent expenditure that enhances
or extends the software’s functionality. . All other expenditure is expensed as incurred. Software is amortised
on a straight-line basis over it's estimated useful life of 12 years. Amortisalion expense is recognized in the
income statement. The carrying amount of software, depreciation methods. useful lives and residual values is
reviewed annually/periodically for impairment. If an indication of impairment exists, the assel's recoverable
amount is estimated, and any impairment loss is recognized in the income statement.

Following is the useful lives of classes of Intangible assets

Intangible assets 12 years

Foreign currency transactions
The financial statements are presented in Bahraini Dinars which ig the functional currency of the Company,

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate prevailing at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the statement of income as position date. All differences are
taken to the statement of income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction and are not subsecquently restated. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. All foreign exchange differences are taken fo the stalement of income, except for
differences relating to items where gains or losses are recognised directly in equity, in which case the gain or
loss Is recognised in equity

Dividends on share capital

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved
by the Company's shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are paid.

Divigends for the year that are approved after the statement of income as position date are dealt with as an
event afler the reporling year.

Share capital
Share capital is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are
recagnised as a deduction from equity.

Revenue recognition

Invesiment income

Income from investment in Murabaha deposits is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective
profit rate method.

Remlal income
Rental income is recognised on an accruals basis.

Governrent granls

Amount received from goverament grants are generally taken as other income. International Accounting
Standard 20 {IAS 20) provides guidelines for accounting for government grants and disclosure of government
assistance. Grants related to income which provide financial support for specific expenses, e.g.. Tamkeen
benefit by offering grants, training, and various development programs. Government grants are recognized on
cash basis .i.e when the grants are received. Grants related to assets which provide financial suppont for
purchasing new assets, e.g., contribution for a particular project. The grant is subtracted from the cost of the
assel, reducing the asset's deprecialion expense.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as income when the Company's right lo receive the payment is established.
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Revenue recognition (continued)

Wakala fee

The Company manages the general and family takaful operations on behalf of the participants for a wakala
fee which s recognised on an accruals basis. Wakala fee is recognised as an expense in the participants'
statement of income (charged on the General and Family Takaful funds) and as an income in the
shareholders’ statement of income. BDuring 2025, based on decision of Sharia Supervisory Board, the Third
Party Administrator {"TPA") fees are classified as shareholders’ expenses and presented separalely in the
shareholders' income statement. These expenses are recovered through the Wakala fee income which is
charged to the participants under 'Recognised takaful costs (2024 - these expenses were accounted for as
direct attrbutable expenses within ‘Recognised tafakul costs’).

Mudarib share

The wvestments of the participants are also managed by the Company for a mudarib share in the invesiment
ingome on the basis of Mudarabah model. Mudarib share is recognised as expense in the participants'
staternent of income and as income in the shareholders' statement of income.

Surplus / Daficit in Participants’ Funds

Surplus in Participants’ Funds arises when the Takaful contributions collected from participants exceed the
claims paid, expenses, and reserves required for fulure claims. In Takaful, the policy for handling surplus or
deficit in participants' funds is guided by Shari'a principles and the surplus distribution is recommended by the
actuary, endorsed by the Sharla Supervisory Board and the board of directors of the Company. The
distribution of surplus from the participants’ fund(s) is subject to the Central Bank of Bahrain's prier written
approval.

If there's a defitit in the participants’ fund at the end of the financial year, it 15 covered by an interesi-free loan
(Qard Hasan) from the shareholders' fund. The shareholders' fund is then reimbursed from any future
surpluses of the participants' fund

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial fiabilities are offsel and the nel amount reported in the consolidated slatement
of financia’ position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to setfle on a net basis, or to realise the assels and settle the liabilty simultaneously.

Employees' end of service benefits

The Company provides end of service benefits to its all employees {expatriates and locals) in accordance with
the relevant regulalions. The entitlement to these benefils s based upon the employees’ final salaries and
length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum service year. The expected costs of these benefits
are accrued over the year of employment based on the notional amount payable if all employees had left at
the statement of income as position date.

With respect to ils national employees, the Company makes coniribulions lo the Social Insurance
Organization calculated as a percentage of the employees' salaries in accordance with the relevant
regulations. The Company's obligations are limited to these contributions, which are expensed when due.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a resultof a
past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embedying econemic benefits will be required to
selile the obligation and a reliable estmate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Payables and accruals
Liabilities are recognised for amounis to be paid in the fulure for services received, whether billed by the
provider or not.

Earnings prohibited by Shari‘a

The Company is commitied to avoid recognizing any income generated from non-shari'a compliant sources.
Accordingly. all non-sharia’a compliant income s credited 1o a charity account where the Company uses these
funds for charitable purposes.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of lhe financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabulities, at the reporting date.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and eslimates could result in outcomes thal could require a malerial adjustment to the
carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future, The most significant uses of judgements and estimales are as follows

Esti and

Takaful and retakaful arrangments
Methods used to measure takaful arrangments (GMM / VFA)

The Company applies GMM / VFA measurement to long-term life coniracts underwritien by the Company such as term assurance and
unil linked savings products. The company primarily uses deterministic projections to estimate the present value of futura cash flows.

The following assumptions were used when estimating future cash flows:
Mortallty and morbidity rates (Family takaful and retakaful busines

Assumplions are based on standard industry and national tables, according to the type of contract written and the teritory in
which the covered person resides. They reflect recent historical experience and are adjusted when appropriate to reflect the
company’s own experiences. An appropriate, but not excessive, allowance is made for expected ifulure improvermenls
Assumplions are differentiated by participant gender, underwriling class and contract type.

An increase in expecied mortality and morbidity rates will increase the expected claim cost which will reduce future
expected profits of the company.

. Expenses

Operating expenses assumplions reflect the projected costs of maintaining and servicing in-force policies and associated
overhead expenses (which will include Wakalah fees expecied to be incurred). The cument level of expenses is taken as an
appropriate expense base, adjusted for expected expense inflation if appropriate. An increase in the expected levef of
expenses will reduce future expecied profils of the company.

The cash flows within the contract boundary include an allocation of fixed and variable overheads directly atiribwtable to
fulfilling takaful arrangments. Such overheads are allocated to groups of coniracls using methods that are syslematic and
rational, and are consistently applied to all costs that have similar characteristics.

5 Lapse and surrender rates

Lapses relate to the termination of policies due to non—payment of contributions. Surrenders relate to the voluntary
termination of policies by participants. Policy termination assumplions are determined with consideration to the historical
and fulure expected Company's experience and are considered separalely for term assurance and unit linked business

An increase in lapse rates early in the life of the pelicy would tend to reduce profits of the company, but later increases are
broadiy neutral in effect. Limited lapses are expected on ihe lerm assurance and unit linked business underwritten by the
Company given historical experience and lhe malturily and size of the book.

Methods used to e takaful arrangments (PAA)

The Company applies the PAA to simplify the measurement of insurance contracis, This applies to policies with a coverage peried of
less than one year and where the coverage period is greater than one year and the policies were deemed to be PAA eligible. For
general insurance busines, PAA eligibility was considered for groups underwritten in the engineering, liability and general accident lines
of business as well as proportional reinsurance conlracts held. When measuring liabilities for incurred claims, the Company now
discounts cash flows that are expected to occur more than one year afler the date on which the claims are incurred and includes an
explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk,

Liability for remaining coverage

Takaful acquisition cash flows

Insurance acquisition costs are defined as those costs related to the selling. underwriting and starting a group of insurance contracts.
The Company s policy is lo defer acquisition costs. Acquisition costs are amortised on a siraight-line basis over lhe coverage period of
the group of conlracls and therefore an asset for insurance acquisition cash flows is recognised for acquisilion cash flows incurred
before the related group of insurance contracts has been recognised.
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Estimates and assumptions [continuad}

Takafu! and retakaful arrangments (continued)

Mathods used to measure takaful amrangments {PAA) (continued)

Onerous groups

If there are facts and circumstances that indicate that a group of contracts is onerous, a loss will be recognised in profit or loss equal to
the net outflow, resulting in the carrying amount of the lability for the group being equal to the fulfilment cash flows. The loss recognised
far an onerous group of contracts will be rebalanced at each reporting date, with any change in the loss component recognised as an
increase of reversal of losses in profit or loss.

Where the Company recognises a loss on initial recognition of an onerous group of underlying Insurance contracts or when further
onerous underlying insurance confracts are added 10 a group, lhe Company establishes a loss-recovery component of the asse! for
rermaining coverage for a group of reinsurance contracts held depicting the recovery of losses.

The Company calculates the loss-recovery companent by multiplying the loss recognised on the underlying insurance coniracts and the
percentage of claims on the underlying insurance contracls the Company expects to recover from the group of reinsurance conlracts
held. The Company uses a sysiemalic and rational method 1o determine the portion of losses recognised on the group to insurance
contracts covered by the group of reinsurance contracts held where some contracls in ihe underlying groups are not covered by the
group of reinsurance canlracts held.

The loss component and loss-recovery component adjusts the carrying amount of the liability and asset for remaining coverage
respectively.

Liability for incurred claims

The best estimate provision {probability weighted cash flows) for liability for incurred claims relates to claim events that have occurred
bafore or at the reporling date, whether the claims arising from these events have been reporied (OCR) or not (IBNR). The cash flow
projections comprise all future claim paymentis, receivables from salvage as well as the claims adminisiration expenses arising from
these events.

The reinsurance cash fow projections will make allowance for the besl estimate credit risk arising from the potential default of
reinsurance counterparties.

The ultimate cost of outstanding and unreporied claims {on coverage provided) is estimated by using a range of standard acluarial
claims projection techniques,

The main assumption underlying these techniques is thal a Company's past claims development experience can be used to project
fulure claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. These methods extrapolate the development of paid and incumred losses
average costs per claim (including claims handling costs). and claim numbers based on the observed development of earlier years and
expected loss ratios. Hislorical claims development is mainly analysed by accident years. but can also be furlher analysed by
geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and claim types. Large claims are usually separately addressed. either by
being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster estimales or separalely projected in order to reflect their future development. In most
cases, no explicit assumptions are made regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss ratios Instead, the assumptions used are
those implicit in the historical claims development data on which the projections are based. Additional qualitative judgement is used to
assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in future. {e.g., to reflect one-off occumrences. changes in external or market faciors
such as public atlitudes to claiming, economic condilions, levels of claims infation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal
faclors such as partfolo mix. pelicy features and claims handling procedures) in order to amive at the estimaled ultimale cost of claims
that present the probabilily weighled expected value outcome from the range of possible outcomes, taking account of all the
unceriainties involved

Other key circumstances affecting the rellability of assumptions Include variation in profit rates. delays in settlement and changes in
foreign currency exchange rales.

Discount rates

The lakafu! liabdity | asset for incured claims allows for the discounting expected fulure cash flows at a risk free rate, plus an illiquidity
premium where applicable Risk free rales are determined by reference to USD curve and Courry Risk Premium. The illiquidity
premium is determined by reference to observable market rates,

Yield Curve 1Yr 2Yr Y 4Yr sYr &Yr 7Yr 8Yr &Yr 10 Yr 15 Yr 20¥r
2025 4,93% 538% 577% 628% 674% 7.16% 749% 7.78% 802% 817% 9.19% 9.68%
2024 5.35% 596% 643% 6B84% 7.26% 7.63% 790% 8.11% 827% 837% 8.80% 8.95%

The table below demonstrate the duration of the liability for incurred claims split by expected time to setttement,

Portfolio Duration
1 year 3 years 5 years 10 years 20 yaars
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

Takalul arrangements

issued

BHD 92% 93% T% 7% 1% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Retakaful arrangments

1ssued

BHD 94% 97% 5% k<) 1% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2025

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS [continued)

Estimates and pti {continued)

Takaful and retakaful arrangments {continued)
Risk adjustment for non-financia! risk

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk represenis the compensation that the company requires for bearing the uncertainty about the
amount and timing of the cash flows of groups of takaful arangements and covers takaful risk. lapse risk and expeanse risk. The risk
adjustment reflects an amount that an insurer would rationally pay to remove the uncertainty that future cash flows will exceed the best
estimate amount.

The rigk adjustment held in refalion to the Liability for Incurred Claims is determined such that the technical reserve held is between the
65th and 75th percentile of the ultimate reserve distribution wilh the final amount held selected to align with management's risk appetite

Amortisation of the Contractual Service Margin

The CSM is a component of the assel or liability for the group of takaful arrangments that represenls the uneamed profil the company
will recognise as it provides services in the future. An amount of the C5M for a group of lakaful arrangments is recognised in profit or
loss as lakaful revenue in each period to reflect the takaful arrangment services provided under the group of takaful arangments in that
pericd. The amount is determined by:

. Identifying the coverage units in the group

Allocating the CSM at the end of the period (before recognising any amounis in profit or loss to reflect the takaful
. arrangment services provided in the period} equally o each coverage unit provided in the current period and expected to be
provided in the future; and

. Recognising in profit or loss the amount allocated to coverage units provided in the period.

The number of coverage units in a group is the quantity of takaful amangments services provided by the contracts in the group
determined by considering the quanlity of the benefits provided and the expected coverage period. For groups of family takaful
arrangments, the quantily of benefits is the contractually agreed sum insured over the period of the contracts. The total coverage units of
each group of takaful arrangments are reassessed at tha end of each reporting period to adjust for the reduction of remaining coverage
for claims paid, expectations of lapses and cancellation of coniracls in the period. They are then aflocated based on probability-
weighled average duration of each coverage unit provided in the current period and expected to be provided in the future,

For retakaful arrangmenis issued, the number of coverage units in a group reflects the expected pattern of underwriting of the underlying
contracts because the level of service provided depends on the number of underlying contracts in force. The quantity of benefil is the
maximum probable loss. The remaining coverage unils are reassessed at the end of each reporling peried to reflect the expected
patiern of service and ihe expectations of lapses and cancellations of contracts. The remaining coverage is allocated based on
probability-weighted average duration of each coverage unit provided in the cument period and expected io be provided in the future.

For retakaful arrangments held, the CSM amortisation is similar to the relakaful arrangments issued and reflects the expected pattern of
underwriling of the underlying contracis because the level of service provided depends on the number of underlying contracts in-force,

Assets for takaful acquisition cash flows

The company applies judgement in determining the inputs used in the methodology to systematically and rationally allocate takaful
acquisition cash flows to groups of takaful arangmenls. This includes judgements about whether takaful arrangments are expected to
arise from renewals of existing takaful arrangments and, where applicable, lhe amount to be allocated to groups including future
renewals and the volume of expected renewals from new contracts issued in the period.

In the current and prior years, the compary did not allocate any takaful acquisition cash flows o future groups of takaful amangments, as
it did not expect any renewal contracts to arise from new contracts issued in the period.

In the current and prior year, the company did not identify any facts and circumstances indicating that the assets may be impaired.

impairment losses on financial assels

The m nemt of impai t losses under FAS 30 across relevant financial assets requires judgement, in particular for the
estimation ¢f the amount and timing of fulure cash flows when determining impairmenl losses and the assassment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by the outcome of madelled ECL scenarios and the relevant inputs used.,

Going concern

The Company’s managerment has made an assessment of lhe Company's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the
Company has the resources to continue in busi for the for ble fulure. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material
uncenairties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The Comparny is alss complied
with Capital Adequacy & Solvency margin requirements esiablished by the Central Bank of Bahrain, refer nole 34. Therefore, the
financial statements continue 1o be prepared on the going concern basis,

Family takaful reserves

Family takaful reserves represent the present value of future abligations in respect of contracts in force at the reporting date, computed
based on internal calculation which is reviewed and assessed by an external actuary

§ STATUTORY DEPOSITS

Statutory deposits are maintained under the regulations of the Ceniral Bank of Bahrain and Financial Inslitutions Law, 2006. Such
deposits, which depend on the nature of the takaful business and the number of branches, cannot be withdrawn excepl with the approval
of the Ceniral Bank of Bahrain_ A surn of BD 125,000 (2024: BD 125,000) has been deposited with Bahrain Islamic Bank B.S.C. in the
name of the Company and for the order of Central Bank of Bahrain.




Takaful international Company B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audited)

6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 2025
General Family
Shareholders takatul takaful Total
BD BD BD BD
Balances with banks 439,166 959,885 916,967 2,316,018
Expected credit loss (37) {65) (52) (154)
439,130 959,820 916,915 2,315,865
31 December 2024
General Family
Sharehoiders takalul takaful Totai
BD [=/a] BD BO
Balances with banks 1.102,233 645793 138,554 1,886,580
Expected credit foss (27) {27} {2} (58
1,102,206 645,766 138.552 1,886,524

All balances were classified under stage 1 as of 31 December 2025 and 31 December 2024 and carry an ECL

provision of BD 154 (2024 BD 56).

Call account balance earn effective profit rates averaging 2.5% per annum {2624 2.81% per annum)

The savings account balances with banks earn effective profit rates ranging between 0.13% and 0.23% per annum

{2024 between 0.36% and 0.41% per annum).

The current account balances with banks are non-profit bearing

31 December 2025
General Family
Shareholders takatui takaful Total
8D ao 80 BD
7 TERM DEPOSITS
Bank deposits with maturities more than three months 1,250,000 - 1,950,000 3,200,000
Expected credit loss (131) . (180) {311)
1,249,869 - 1,949,820 3,199,689
31 December 2024
General Farnily
Shareholders takaful takaful Total
BD 8D BD [=fa)
Bank deposits with maturities more than three months 800.000 2,200,000 1,700,000 4,700,000
Expecled credit loss (42) {77) {1 {120)
799,958 2,199,923 1,699 999 4,699,880

All balances were classified under stage 1 and 2 as of 31 December 2025 and 31 December 2024 and carry an ECL

provision of BD 311 (2624: BD 120).
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 {Audited)

8 Financial assets at fair value (continued)

Investment movement

At the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Maturities during the year
Disposals during the year
Amortisation during the year - net
Changes in fair value net

At the end of the year

9 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

31 December 31 December
2025 2024
BD 8D
28,713,415 22,890,394
2,088,034 8,675,771
(200,000) {1,371.440)
(459,567) {1.462,769)
138,596 120,702
773,448 (139,243)
31,053,926 28,713,415

The Company has a 22 22% (2024: 22.22%) interest in Health 360 Ancillary Services W.L.L which is engaged in
the services of processing claims in connection with health insurance coverage offered or provided by insurance

firms,

The movements in the carrying amount of the associate is as follows:

At 1 January
Dividend received for the financial year
Share of results in an associate

At 31 December

31 December

31 Decermnber

2025 2024
BD BD
247,262 235,668
(33,325) (26,659)
36,016 38,253
249,953 247,262

The associate is a limited liability Company and is not listed on any public exchange. Summarised financial
statement of the associale, based on its un-audited financial statements, and reconciliation with the carrying
amount of the investment in the financial statements are set out below:

Summarised financial position of the associate

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Equity {106%)

Proportion of the Company's ownership %

Carrying amount of investments in an associate

Company's share of an assoclate’s results

31 December

31 Decemnber

2025 2024
BD BD
3,598,561 3,367,727
675,651 838.738
{3,086,557) {2,958 266)
(62,604) (135,257)
1,125,051 1,112,941
22.217% 22.217%
249,953 247,262
36,016 38,253
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audited)

12  OTHER RECEIVABLES, ACCRUED INCOME AND PREPAYMENTS

Staff related receivables

Accrued incomes

Prepaid expenses

Tender deposit

Other receivables”

Receivables from Participants Fund

Expected credit loss (Note 21)

Staff related receivables

Accrued income

Prepaid expenses

Tender deposit

Other receivables *

Receivables from Participants Fund

Al 31 December
Expected credit loss (Note 21)

31 December 2025

General Family

Shareholders takaful takaful Total
BD BD 8D BD

4,117 - - 4,117
108,005 237,832 58,856 404,694
74,435 - - 74,435

- 193,171 - 193,171

83,320 5,795,269 12,585 5,891,173
1,476,465 - - 1,476,465
1,746,342 6,226,272 71,441 8,044,054
- (1,004,609) (5,084) (1,009,693)

1,746,342 5,221,663 66,357 7,034,361

i} 31 December 2024
General Family

Shareholders takaful takaful Total
8D 8D 8D 8D

4,855 - - 4 855
184,633 161,064 53,158 398,855
130,873 - - 130,873
298,283 3,940,224 47,980 4,286,488
1,167,483 - - 1,167,483
1,786,127 4,101,288 101,138 5,988,554
- (926,840) {32,768) {959,608)
1,786,127 3,174,448 68,370 5,028,946

* Other receivables include the balances due from insurance intermediaries for general and family takaful of BD
4.1 M (2024; BD 3.1M) and other receivables of BD 1.8M (2024: BD 1.2M} mainly pertaining to VAT receivable.
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audiled)

13 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

F"m'ra":‘;z Office Motor Total
fxtures equipment vehicles

BD BD BD BD
Cost
At 1 January 2025 579,499 343,866 54,055 977,420
Additions 46,800 17,230 - 64,030
Disposals - {11,934} = {11,934)
At 31 December 2025 626,299 349,162 54,055 1,028,516
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2025 539,465 242,772 37,030 819,267
Charge for the year 9,513 62,599 5,240 77,352
Disposals - (11,934) - {11,934)
At 31 December 2025 548,978 293,437 42,270 884,685
Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2025 77,321 55,725 11,785 144,831

Furniture
I equj ?ﬁfﬁ vefnr,:gg; CL)
fixtures quip

BD BD BD 8D
Cost
At 1 January 2024 553,341 278,303 33,097 864,741
Additions 26.158 65,563 20,958 112679
At 31 December 2024 579,499 343,866 54 055 977420
Accumulated depreciation
Al 1 January 2024 533,809 182,805 33,097 748,711
Charge for the year 5,656 59,967 3,933 69,556
Al 31 December 2024 539,465 242,772 37,030 819,267
Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2024 40,034 101,094 17,025 158,153
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audited}

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost:
At 1 January
Additions during the year

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January
Amortisation charge during the year

Carrying amount:

Estimated useful live

31 December

31 December

2025 2024
8b 8D
732,853 608,135
50,824 124,718
783,677 732,853
107,252 38,183
71,175 69,069
178,427 107,252
605,250 625,601
12 years 12 years

The software is recognized as an intangible asset at cost. Software is amortised on a straight-ine basis over its
estimated useful life of 12 years. Amortization expense is recognized in the income statement under cperating

expenses,

The addition to software includes costs that enhance or exiend the funclionality of the software.

15 IJARAH

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

15.1 Right of use asset

At 1 January
Addition of lease
Depreciation for the year

At 31 December

15.2 [ljarah liabilites

At 1 January

Addition of lease
Accretion of profit expense
Lease payments

31 December

31 December

2025 2024
BD BD
388,484 465,735
26,338 -
{109,039) (77.251)
305,783 388,484
31 December 31 December
2025 2024
BD BD
427,002 502,626
26,338 -
33,898 37,942
(120,328) (113,5686)
366,911 427,002
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audited)

16 Payables and accrued liabilities

Provision for employees'

leaving indemnity (Note 29)

Accrued expenses

Provision for leave pay

Surplus distribution payable (Note 43)
Other liabilities and provisions™
Payable to shareholders fund

Provision for employees’
leaving indemnity (Note 29}
Accrued expenses

Provision for leave pay

Other liabilities and provisions®
Payable to shareholders fund

31 December 2025

Share- General Family Total

holders takaful takaful
8D 8D 8D BD
541,067 - - 541,067
427,524 - - 427,524
25,658 - - 25,658
- 260,140 - 260,140
2,189,858 306,358 10,299 2,506,515
- 588,739 887,726 1,476,465
3,184,108 1,155,237 898,025 5,237,370

31 December 2024

Share- General Family Total

holders takaful takaful
BD BD BOD 8D
472612 - - 472,612
149,219 - - 149,219
30,085 - - 30,085
1,988,957 356,606 18,914 2,364,477
- 600,500 566,983 1,167,483
2,640,873 957,106 585,897 4,183,875

* Other liabilities and provisions included amounts due to insurance intermediaries of BD 797k (2024: BD 658k).

Payables and accrued liabilities include amounts due to related parties of BD 136k {2024: BD 44k]).
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audited)

17  EQUITY AND RESERVES

Authorised share capital:

Ordinary shares
200,000,000 ordinary shares of 100 fils each
{2024: 200,000,000 ordinary shares of 100 fils each)

Issued and fully paid-up
capital:

Ordinary shares
85,000,000 ordinary shares of 100 fils each
(2024: 85,000,000 ordinary shares of 100 fils each)

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

BD 8D
20,000,000 20,000,000
8,500,000 8,500,000

Treasury shares amounting to BD 18,574 representing 143,181 shares were purchased by the

Company during 2025 (2024: 16,252 shares).

Additional information on shareholding pattern

iy The names and nationalities and number of shares held by the major shareholders individually
helding 5% and more of the issued and fully paid-up share capital as at 31 December 2025 and 31

December 2024 respectively is as follows:

Name of the shareholders Nafionality
Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company BSC Bahraini
Name of the shareholders Nationality
Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company BSC Bahraini

Al Amana Alama State of Kuwait Kuwaiti

31 December 2025

Number Percentage
of shares i/
shareholding
74,901,974 88.12%

31 December 2024

Percentage of

Number = o roholding
of shares .
interest
69,651,974 81.94%:
5,250,000 6.18%
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audited)

17  EQUITY AND RESERVES (continued)

Additional information on shareholding pattern (continued)

i) The Company has only one class of equity shares and the holders of the shares have equal voting

rights.
31 December 2025

Percentage
of total
Number of Number of outstanding
shareholders shares shares
Less than 1% 193 6,195,820 7.29%
1% up to less than 5% 2 3,902,206 4.59%
10% up to less than 88% 1 74,901,974 88.12%
196 85,000,000 100.00%

i) The distribution pattern of equity shares, setting out the number of shareholders and percentages in

the following categories is as follows:

31 December 2024

Percentage

of total

Number of Number of outstanding

shareholders shares shares

Less than 1% 188 6,185,820 7.28%
1% up to less than 5% 2 3,902,208 4.55%
5% up to less than 10% 1 5,250,000 6.18%
10% up to less than 82% 1 69,651,974 81.94%
192 85,000,000 100.00%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audited)

17 EQUITY AND RESERVES (continued)

Statutory reserve

As required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies L.aw and the Insurance Regulations contained in
Volume 3 of the Central Bank of Bahrain Rulebook, 10% of the profit for the year is to be transferred to
a statutory reserve until such time as the reserve equals 50% of the paid up share capital. The reserve
is not available for distribution except in such circumstances as stipulated in the Bahrain Commercial
Companies Law and following approval of the Central Bank of Bahrain. The company transferred an
amount of BD 141,822 (2024: BD 133,443) to the statutory reserve for the year ended 31 December
2025.

General reserve

Appropriations to the general reserve are made as proposed by the Board of Directors and approved
by the shareholders. The reserve represents retained earnings and is available for distribution subject
to approval of the Central Bank of Bahrain. No amount was transferred to the General reserve for the
year ended 31 December 2025 (2024: Nil). At 31 December 2025 and 31 December 2024, this
reserve amounted to BD 200,000 (2024: BD 200,000).
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Takaful Intemational Company B.S.C. _
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Feor the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audiled}

20  NET PARTICIPANTS' AND SHAREHOLDERS INVESTMENT INCOME

Deposit income

Coupon / profit on investment securities
Profit income on Investment

Unrealized gain on fair value changes
Dividend incormne

Gain / loss on sale of investment securities
Investment expenses

Other investment income/ (loss)

ECL on investments

Mudarib share income / (expense)

Deposit income

Coupon / profit on investment securities
profitincome on investment

Dividend income

Gain / loss on sale of investment securities
Investment expenses

Other investment loss

ECL on investments

Mudarib share incorne [ {expensa)

21 ECL ON RECEIVABLES FROM INTERMEDIARIES

ECL on receivables from intermediaries (note 12)

ECL on receivables from intermediaries (note 12)

31 December 2025
Share- General Family Total
holders takaful takaful
BO BD [:{2] BD
65,663 69,852 91.523 227,038
361,243 874,901 120.458 1,356,602
426,906 944,754 211,980 1,583,641
251,713 (19.240) (10.680) 221,783
255,967 12,961 6.238 275,165
141,261 - 141,261
(483,005) S (483,005}
165,935 (6,280) (4,442) 155,214
(55) (4,694) 285 {4,464)
285,401 (233,445) (51,956) s
B78,188 700,335 155,868 1,734,391
31 December 2024
Share- General Family
holders takaful takaful Total
80 BOD [=/s] BD
118,334 161,891 85,124 365,348
470,595 701,232 94,540 1,266,337
588,929 863,123 179,634 1,631,686
141,084 11,552 7.920 160,556
{6,277) (13,395) BOG (18.866)
(334,276) - - {334,276)
(199,469) (1.843) 8,726 {192,586)
{8,953) 2,324 (2.844) (9.473)
262,280 {215,901} (46,379) _
642,787 647,704 139,136 1,429 627
31 December 2025
Share- General Family
holders takaful takaful Total
BD BD BD BD
" 1,004,609 5,084 1,009,693
- 1,004,609 5,084 1,009,693
31 December 2024
Share- General Family
holders takaful ltakaful Total
8D BD BD BD
- 926,840 32.768 959,608
- 926,840 32.768 959,608
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 {Audited)

22  WAKALA FEE AND MUDARIB SHARE

The shareholders manage the general and family takaful operations for the participants’ and charge 19.2% (2024 18.8%)
and 20.25% (2024 20.5%) respectively of gross contributions as a wakala fee. The shareholders also manage the
participants’ investment funds as a mudarib and charge 25% (2024: 25%) of the general takaful and family takaful
investment income earned by the participants’ investment funds, respectively. The maximum chargeable wakala fee and
mudarib share, as approved by the Shan'a Supervisory Board, are 30% (2024: 30%) and 25% (2024 25%:] respactively.

During 2025, based on decision of Sharia Supervisory Board, the Third Party Administrator {'TPA”) fees are classified as
sharehclders’ expenses and presented separately in the shareholders’ income statement. These expenses are recovered
through the Wakala fee income which is charged to the participants under 'Recognised takaful costs (2024 - these
expenses were accounted for as direct attributable expenses within ‘Recognised tafakul costs’).

23 OTHER INCOME

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

8D Bo

Tamkeen - Government subsidy 34,085 11,114
34,085 11,114

24  GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

31 December

31 December

2025 2024

8D BD

Employee related cosis 1,753,104 1,629,045
Adminstrative expenses 856,179 721,007
Depreciation and amortization 257,566 215,876
2,866,849 2,565,928

24 (a} AUDIT FEES 31 December 31 December
2025 2024

BD BD

Audit fee 37,075 37,075
Non-Audit fee 3,009 3,009
40,084 40,084

25  COMMISSION EXPENSES

31 December

31 December

2025 2024

BD 8D

Commission expenses 1,746,130 1,644,105
1,746,130 1,644,105

26 OTHER EXPENSES

31 December

31 December

2025 2024

BD BD

Corporate expenses 338,675 380,510
338,675 380,510
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audited)

27  EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS (CHARGE) /! REVERSAL ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

2025
ECL charged
At1 during At 31
January the year December
8D BD BD
Balances with banks and term deposits (Note 6 & 7) 176 289 465
Debt securities at FVOC! 44 480 4174 48,654
Other receivables, accrued income and prepayments {Note 12) 959,608 50,085 1,009,693
1,004,264 54,549 1,058,813
2024
ECL charged
At during At 31
January the year December
BD BOD 8D
Balances with banks and term deposits (Note 6 & 7) 407 (232} 175
Debt securitias at FVOCI 34,764 9,716 44,480
Debt securilies al amortisad cost 11 {11) -
Other receivables, accrued income and prepayments (Note 12) 988.552 (28,944) 959,608
1.023.734 (19,471) 1,004,263

28 EARNINGS5 PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the shareholders by the weighted average
number of cutstanding shares issued by the Company. Treasury shares represent 143,181 (2024: 16,252) shares which
were purchased by the Company dwing the year ended 31 December 2025

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

BD BD

Net profit 1,418,222 1,334,421
\Weighted average number of outstanding shares issued 84,887,354 B4 983,748
Earnings per share 16.71 Fils 15.70 Fils
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audited)

28  EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Other information

Net asset value per share

Share price per Bahrain Bourse at 31 December

Price to earning ratio at 31 December

Total market capilalisation at 31 December {BD - thousand)

29 EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

31 December

2025

154 Fils
134 Fils
8 Times

11,390

31 December

2024

149 Fils
120 Fils
8 Times

10,200

The contributions made by the Company towards the pension scheme for Bahraini nationals administered by the Social
Insurance Organizalion in the Kmgdom of Baheain for the year ended 31 December 2025 amounted to BD 178,157 (2024:

BD 182.433).

The movement in leaving indemnity liability applicable to employees is as follows:

Opening balance
Accruals for the year

Payments during the year
Closing balance

Total number of staff employed by the Company

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

BD 8o

472,611 393281
93,792 899,213
(25,336) {19,883)
541,067 472,611

133 117
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audited)

30 RELATED PARTIES

Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Company and entities controlled.
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. All transactions with such related parties are conducted on mutual

agreed terms.

Transactions with related parties included in the statement of income are as follows:

31 December 2025

Recognised takaful contributions
Recognised takaful costs
Retakaful income / {expense)

Share of result of an associate

31 December 2024

Recognised takaful contributions
Recognised takaful costs

Retakaful income / (expense)

Share of result of an associate

Associate Parant
Company
42,170 159,082
- {356,349)
32,119 {625,224)
36,016
Associate C';:_lr:::]y
38,184 475,024
- {704,113}
33,670 (276,123}
38,253

Balances with refated parties included mn the stalement of financial position are as follows:

31 December 2025

Takaful arrangement liabilifies
Retakaful arrangement liabilites
Payables and accrued liabilities
Invesiment in an associate

31 December 2024

Takaful arrangement liabilifies
Retakaful arrangement labilities
Payables and accrued liabilities
Investment in an associate

* Entities under common control include Gulf Insurance Group (GULF} B.S.C

Associate —
s Company
- 730,878
5 1,046,764
31,924 71,983
249,953 -
Associate U
Company
3,378 597,149
- 451,783
3,738 20,562
247,262

78

Entities under
common
control*

11,735
(306,526}
{149,851}

Entities under
common
control”

25,916
(358,607}
20,544

Entities under
common
control*

76,006
173,573
32,549

Entities under
commgon
control*

87,425
96,705
19,932

Closed & Gulf Insurance Group K.S.C.P.

Total

212,987
{662,875)
{742,957)

36,016

Total

543,124
[1,062,720)
{221,909)

38,253

Total

806,884
1,220,337
136,456
249,953

Total

687,952
548,488

44,232
247,262



Takaful International Company B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audited)

30 RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Compensation of directors and key management personnel
The remuneration of Board of Directors and the sitling fees paid te the Directors for attendance of Board Committees’ meetings
during the year and other expenses were as follows:

31 December

2025 2024

Directors 8D BD
Directors' remuneration 110,000 100,000
Directors' attendance fees 17,700 21,984
127,700 121,984

31 December

2025 2024

Key Management personnel 8D 8D
Salaries and other benefits 577,564 596,155
End of service benefits 34,830 33.290
612,394 629,445

The Key Management personnel includes the Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Underwriting Officer — Motor Takaful, Director - Specialty Lines and Major Accounts and Director - Personal Lines & Quality Control.

At 31 December 2025, the Employees’ end of service benefits of BD 541,066 (2024: 472.611) included the amount of BD 311,715
for the Key Management Personnel (2024: BD 279,352)

H DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors, at a meeting held on 16 February 2026, recommended cash dividend of 15 fils per share amounting to BD
1,272,609 (2024 BD 1,062,297), which are subject to approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 29
March 2026. Dividend of BD 1,062,297 for the financial year 2024 was paid during the year 2025 (For the financial year 2023: BD
637,378 divident was paid during the year 2024},
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audited)

32 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Company is organised into departments based on the classes of covered risks. The reportable operating
segments of the Company are as follows:

- Marine and general offers takaful policies to cover various risks of marine & aviation, property, engineering, group life takaful and
general accident;

- Motor offers takaful policies to cover risks of motor third party and motor comprehensive;

- Maedical offers takaful policies to cover risks of group and health takaful, and

- Family offers takaful policies to cover risks of individual life and unit linked savings.

Management monitors the underwriting resuits of the operating segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allecation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on underwriting profit. The following table presents disclosure
of segment revenues, measurement of segment profit for the year and their reconciliation to the Company's income and profit for the year.

31 December 2025
Marine and Family

general Motor Medical Takaful Totat

8D BOD BD BD BD

Recognised takaful contributions 8,752,203 8793152 11,677,830 499,358 29,722,544
Recognised takaful costs (3,509,219} 8,315,954) {12.589.102) (305.790) (24 730.065)
Takaful service resuit before retakaful contracts held 5,242,985 477,198 (921,272) 193,568 4,992,479
Retakaful net results (4.892.381) {128,498) 42,213 {108,470} (5.087.138)
Takaful participants’ gross margin 350,603 348,702 (879,060) 85,098 (94,657)
Participants' profit income on investment 282 949 284 273 377,532 211.980 1,156,734
Participants' other investment {expense) / income net 1.881) (1,890) (2,509) (4.442) {10.721)
ECL gain/ (loss) on financial assets (1,406) (1.413) {1,876) 285 {4.409)
Mudarib share expense (89,918) {70,243} {93,287) (51.956) {285 401}
Amortization of deferred cost (refated to provision of takaful arrangements) {49.851) {107,550} (38,529) (329157} {525 088)
Amonriization of deferred profit (related to provision of retakaful arrangements) 36,352 81 (21682} 14,751
Other participants' (expenses) / income {38,926} (28,629) {10.214) 27,684 {50,085}
Profit / (loss) for the year 507,926 423,251 {647,863) (82,190} 201,124

31 December 2024

Marine and Famity

general Motor Medical Takalut Total

8D BD 8D BD 8D

Recognised Takaful Contributions 7.273.409 8.606.735 9,718,481 382,123 25,980,728
Recognised Takaful Costs {4.160,669) (8.121.430)  (10,186,281) (155,123}  (22.623,503)
Takaful service result before retakaful contracts held 3,112,740 485,305 (467,820} 227,001 3,357,225
Retakaful net results (3,123,178} {86,231} (76,415} (47,765) (3,333,586)
Takaful participants’ gross margin (10.435) 399,074 {544,235) 179,236 23,639
Participants’ profit income on investment 248,625 294,202 332,204 182,774 1,057,805
Participants’ other investment income net {3.450) {5,690) (4,610 5,585 (8,165)
ECL loss on financial assets 747 952 625 (2.844) (520
Mudarib share expense (61,480) {72,366) {82,055} (46,379) (262.280)
Amortization of deferred cost {related to proviston of takaful arrangements} (158,781) (160,546) {52,233) (247,727 (619,286)
Amortization of deferred profit (related to provision of retakaful arrangements) 109,381 42 310 {14,537) 95,196
Other participants' income 1,958 17,259 9,727 - 28,944
Profit / (loss) for the year 126.565 472,928 {340,267) 56,107 315,333
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 {(Audited)

34 CAPITAL ADEQUACY AND SOLVENCY MARGIN

Capital Adequacy & Solvency margin requirements are determined in accordance with the regulatory
requirements established by the Central Bank of Bahrain and are calculated with reference to a prescribed
contributions and claims basis. The Central Bank of Bahrain {CBB) rulebook stipulates that solvency
margin requirements are on a combined basis of both participants' and shareholder’s funds together. The
capital available to cover solvency margin required is as follows:

2025 2024

Shareholder - Available capital 12,062,000 12,081,000
Less: Net Admissible assets of General Participants' Fund (1,851,000) (1,698,000)
Less: Net Admissible assets of Family Participants’ Fund (1,015,000) (1,336,000}
Total available sharehelders’ capital to cover required solvency margin 9,196,000 9,047,000
Less: Margin required for General Takaful funds (4,192,000} (3,817,000)
Less: Margin required for Family Takaful funds {1,913,000) (1,232,000)
Excess Capital 3,091,000 3,998,000

35 SHARI'A SUPERVISORY BOARD

The Company's business activities are subject to the supervision of a Shari'a Supervisory Board consisting
of three members appointed by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. The Shari'a Supervisory
Board performs a supervisory role in order to determine whether the operations of the Company are
conducted in accordance with Islamic Sharia rules and principles.

36 ZAKAH

Zakah of BD 319,373 at 3.76 fils per share {2024: BD 310,173 at 3.65 per share) is to be directly borne by
the shareholders and, accordingly, the financial statements includes no provision for Zakah. Zakah base is
calculated using the ‘Net Invested Funds' method of calculating Zakah base. The components used in the
computation of Zakah are share capital. statutory reserve, general reserve and retained earnings
participants’ equity and property and equipment. The basis of computation is approved by the Shari‘a
Supervisory Board and the amounts payable are notified to the shareholders.

37 EARNINGS PROHIBITED UNDER SHARI'A

There were no earnings retained during the year (2024: nil) from transactions which are not permitted
under Sharria.

38 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company is a defendant in a number of cases brought by takaful arrangement holders in respect of
claims which the Company disputes in its normal course of business. The Company based on the
independent legal advice. does not believe that the outcome of these court cases will have a material
impact on the Company's income or financial position.

39 COMMITMENTS

During the year, the Company obtained a Letter of Guarantee amounting to BD 29,232 (2024: Nil) from its
primary bankers in order to secure insurance business relating to Insurance for Bridge Facilities and
Amenities of the King Fahd Causeway Authority. The Letter of Guarantee provides assurance to the
project counterparties regarding the Company's contractual performance under the related insurance
arrangements.

The Letter of Guarantee does not transfer insurance risk and does not form part of the insurance contracts
issued by the Company.
40 QARD AL HASSAN

In accordance with the capital adequacy requirements of the Central Bank of Bahrain’ Insurance Rulebook,
there is no Qard apportionment made through the Insurance Firm Return for the year ended 31 December
2025 (2024 Nil).
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audited)

4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Set out below is an overview of the financial instrumenis held by the Company as at 31 December 2025 & 31 December

2024.

Cash and cash equivalents

Term deposits

Retakaful arrangement assets

Other receivables, accrued income and prepayments
Financial assets at fair value

Statutory deposit

Payables and accrued liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents

Term deposits

Retakaful arrangement assets

Other receivables, accrued income and prepayments
Financial assets at fair value

Statutory deposit

Payables and accrued liabilities

31 December 2025

Financial Financial Financial
assets assets assets
at fair value at fair value .
through through il Total
. . cost
eauitv income
BD BD BD 8D
- - 2,315,865 2,315,865
- - 3,199,688 3,199,689
. - 1,557,280 1,557,280
- - 7,034,361 7,034,361
26,652,593 4,401,333 - 31,053,926
. - 125,000 125,000
26,652,593 4,401,333 14,232,195 45,286,121
31 December 2025
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
Amount
BD
5,237,370
5,237,370
31 December 2024
Financial Financial Financal
assets assets assets
at fair value al fair value al amortised Total
through equity  through income cost
80 /2] BD 80
- - 1,886,524 1,886 524
- - 4,699 880 4,699 880
- - 1,959,339 1.959 339
- - 5,028,946 5.028 946
25,374,046 3,339,370 - 28,713,416
- - 125,000 125,000
25,374,046 3,339,370 13,699,689 42,413,105
31 December 2024
Financial liabilities
al amortised cost
BD
4,183,875
4,183,875
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 (Audited)

42 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to fransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

Fair values of quoted securities are derived from quoted market prices in active markets, if available. For unquoted
securities, fair value is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm's
length market transactions; reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; or olher
valuation models.

The fair values of the funds that are listed on aclive markets are determined by reference to their quoted bid prices. The
fair values of unlisted funds are based on net asset values which are determined by the fund manager using the quoted
markel prices of the underlying assets, if available, or other acceptable methods such as a recent price paid by another
investor or the market value of a comparable company.

Fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2; other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable
either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
observable market data.

31 December 2025

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Carrying Value
8D BD BD 8D BD
Financial assets measuraed at fair value:
- Invastments at FVTPL - Debt 273,561 . - 273,551 273,551
- Invesiments at FVTPL - Equity 4,032,343 - 95,438 4,127,781 4,127,781
- Investments at FVOCI - Debt 25,567,230 . - 25,567,230 25,567,230
- Investments at FVOCI - Equity 1,085,363 - - 1,085,363 1,085,363
30,958,487 - 95,438 31,053,926 31,063,926
31 December 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tolal Carrying Value
BD BD BD 8D 8D
Investment property
Financial assets measured at fair value
- Invesiments al FVTPL - Debl 284,231 - - 284,231 284,231
- Investments at FVTPL - Equity 2,895,146 - 159993 3,055,139 3,055,138
- Invesiments ai FVOCI - Debl 24,358,332 - - 24,358,332 24,359,332
- Investments at FVOCI - Equity 1,014,714 - - 1,014,714 1.014,714
28,563,423 - 159993 28,713,416 28,713,416

Level 3 investment reconciliation
31 December

2025 2024
Opening balance 159,993 237,574
Purchase during the year 5 .
Disposal during the year {22,998) (24,618)
Changes in fair value {41,556) {52,963)
Closing balance 95,439 159,993

Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
During the year ended 31 December 2025 there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value hierarchies, and
no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value hierarchy (2024: No transfers).

Carrying amount and fair values of financial instruments not carried at fair value

Management assessed that the fair values of cash and bank balances. other recivables, payables and accrued liabiliteis,
statutory deposis and lease liabilities approximate ther carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

A majority of the Company's debt securilies at amortised cost are in quasi-sovereign sukuk. Management has assessed
that the fair valuaes of debt securities at amortised cost approximate their carrying amounts as at the reporting date.
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Takaful International Company B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2025 {Audited)

43 Surplus Distribution to Policyholders

During 2025, the Company announced distribution of Surplus to eligible parlicipants for motor and property line of business for
the underwriting year 2024. The Shan'a Supervisory Board and the Board of Directors of the Company held meetings on 4
February 2025 and 13 February 2025 respectively, resolved the distribution of participants' surplus for the amount of BHD
350.904. The distribution was approved by the Central Bank of Bahrain on 12 May 2025.

The distribution process is carried ot under the supervision of the company's Shari'a Supervisory Board, ensuring that all
procedures comply with the principles and provisions of Islamic Shari'a, The process is conducted within a framework of
transparency and fairness, and guided by the independent actuary, who reviews the company's technical data.

Nature BHD
Surplus payable to Participants 350,904
Surplus paid during the year 2025 90,764
Balance payable to Participants (note 18) 260,140
Redemption Options

The Surplus amount can be redeemed through one of the fallowing channels as per the preference of each participant:

Bank Transfer — The Surplus can be transferred to a bank account upon submission of a valid IBAN certificate through
the designated online platform.

Policy Renewal Discount = A discount may be applied to the next policy renewal, regardless of any claims made during
the coverage period.

Charitable Contribution — The Surplus may be donated to a charitable cause. The donation amounts will be allocated to
the Royal Humanitarian Foundation.

44 Domestic Minimum Top-Up Tax

On 1 September 2024, the Kingdom of Bahrain issued the Decree Law (11) of 2024 which introduces a Domestic Minimum Top-
Up Tax {"DMTT") for Multinational Enterprises (*"MNEs") (hereinafter referred to as the “DMTT Law") with an effective date of 1
January 2025.

DMTT Law is largely in line with the OECD Global Anti-Base Erosion Model Rules (‘GloBE rules’) and applies a 15% minimurm
tax rate 1o Bahrain profits of MNEs with global consolidated revenues of at least EUR 750 million in at least two of the previous
four fiscal years. This includes MNEs headquartered in Bahrain as well as foreign MNEs with operations in Bahrain,

The Company has made an assessment and has concluded that it is within the scope of DMTT Law based on the consolidated
revenue threshold of the ultimate parent entity and its operations in multiple jurisdictions.

DMTT BHD

Tax Expense 199,823
Tax Paid to designated Filing Constituent Entity (“"Bahrain 155 835
Kuwait Insurance Company B.S5.C.") !
Tax liabilities 43,988

Under AAQIF, the Participant Fund of TIC is maintained separately from shareholders’ equity, and any surplus in the Participant
Fund does not flow to shareholders’ equity or retained earnings. Based on Management's judgement, while AAQIF| is a locally
permitted financial accounting slandard, the way how the Participant Fund's surplus is accounted for represents a material
competitive distortion compared to the acceptable financial accounting standard (i.e. IFRS) and requires adjustment to the
financial accounting net income or loss for the purpose of DMTT calculation. Therefore, no tax has been accounted for the
Participant Fund's surplus for the year.

45 Subsequent events

There have been no subsequent events since the year ended 31 December 2025 which would have a material impact on the
financial position of the Company as reflected in these financial statements.
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